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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEWwE

“Our amended powers therefore
give us a pivotal role in the
system of financial regulation in
Hong Kong”

[EHEAE  AREEEESEME
ERADREZMEEM

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP Chairman
BAREL K TPEEFE

In the first 18 months of operating as the independent regulator of auditors
of listed entities in Hong Kong, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has
fervently focused on performing our reinvigorated mission. We have strived
to implement efficient processes and deliver effective outcomes, whilst living
our regulatory philosophy and culture and boldly embracing the challenges
being faced along the way with an unerring passion to meet our public
interest purpose.

Through transparency about our performance and the results of our work,
we endeavoured to bring the public new intelligence about the market for
listed entity audits and new insights into the quality of the audits performed
by listed entity auditors to underpin public confidence in the quality of
financial reporting by listed entities. Where appropriate, we acted and
communicated publicly in real-time to instil market confidence that we were
addressing significant public interest issues.

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21

EREEBELM LM ERREAMEERE - AREE
TERME1BEARN » —EFENBITEHED o HIB
NEBESBRIBARGSERRR  AREREEESR
K3t - B UM RS E R kE - UBIRRE

RBHMBEARE -

FBARARBHTIERERR  RIFBNBARER
BRELTEREADSENNER Tl LHEREE
BPTEAIT RV E KRR - UZEEQARY L
EREMBERGRNEL - EEEBERT - B
REITEINEAFER - BHSHRMIEBSREKR
RBEMRENEEFTMED °

MEERD « 2019-21F 3}



Performing our reinvigorated mission

Our mission to uphold the quality of financial reporting by listed entities was
reinvigorated by the new functions and empowerment — under the amended
FRC Ordinance (FRCO) from 1 October 2019.

Financial reporting is a critical element of market disclosures that underpins
efficient market price formation in Hong Kong’s capital markets. Our
amended powers therefore give us a pivotal role in the system of financial
regulation in Hong Kong.

Accordingly, collaborating with other local regulators is critical to our effective
functioning. We have regular liaison meetings and working level dialogue
with the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) and more recently with the Independent
Commission against Corruption (ICAC), and we collaborate through sharing
information, cross-referrals of cases and coordinated regulatory action with
these and other local regulators where appropriate.

Living our regulatory philosophy and culture

The principles and values underpinning our regulatory philosophy and
culture guide us in carrying out our functions and are critical to fulfilling our
mission and purpose.

We operate independently, free from interference by the auditing profession
and listed entities in order to perform our functions fairly, impartially and
consistently. These principles are embedded in our operating policies
and procedures. They are underpinned by prevailing well-established
governance, organisational structures, and the oversight by our Board and
Committees.

We demand the highest integrity of our Board Members and staff and
adherence to high ethical standards in conducting our activities. During the
financial year, we implemented a new Code of Conduct for the Board and
updated our staff Code of Conduct in order to ensure our conducts are fit
and proper, both to the public and the regulated industry.

We highly treasure and hold dear to transparency. This enables public
accountability of our own performance and that of our regulatees, through
public scrutiny of our actions, findings, evaluations and reasoning. It also
enables us to set out our expectations of our regulatees.
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We have pledged to be proficient, by acting professionally, establishing
efficient processes and pursuing effective regulatory outcomes. We have
implemented efficient processes to perform each of our regulatory functions
effectively through appropriate policies, procedures and oversight. We are
carrying out our functions holistically, striving to deliver effective outcomes
by combining them to have the greatest impact at any time where we see
the greatest risk to the achievement of our regulatory objectives.

Underpinning all of these, we have been working hard to nurture an open
and frank corporate culture, in which learning and development by our
people supports sustainable high performance and growth of the FRC.

Boldly embracing the challenges faced along the
way

This financial year has been a period of significant change for the FRC. This
change has brought both internal and external challenges, requiring us to
develop new thinking and long-term strategies. Internally, implementing our
new functions has taken us into uncharted waters. Externally, global and
local challenges have been brought about by Covid-19 and developments in
Hong Kong’s capital markets, including rapid growth in IPO activity by new
economy and pre-revenue biotech companies and continuing growth in the
proportion of Mainland enterprises listed in Hong Kong. These factors have
given rise to challenges to the performance of high quality audits or risks to
high quality financial reporting.

Transparency about our performance and the
results of our work

Transparency is a powerful force for driving change and successful
outcomes that enables accountability through openness and effective
communication. Openness requires a willingness to look at all relevant
information, to make decisions objectively with a clear focus on objectives
and purpose, to engage frankly with all stakeholders and to challenge and
be challenged constructively. We believe that transparency is as important
for us as it is for our regulatees and that is why openness and effective
communication are cornerstones of the culture we are driving at the FRC.

Our operating philosophy includes being transparent about our performance
and the results of our work. Firstly, this enables the investing public and the
wider public whose interests we serve to have confidence that we are acting
appropriately in their interests or to challenge us where they see a need for
us to do more. Secondly, it enables us to be transparent and open about
our findings with respect to the quality of financial reporting and auditing
for listed entities. This enables the public to have justified confidence in the
quality of the performance of the activities that we regulate or to challenge
our regulatees where they see a need for them to do better.
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Acting and communicating publicly in real-time
Much of our work in inspection, investigation and enquiry evaluates the
quality of the completed work of our regulatees. The scoping is risk-based
for inspection and responsive to evidence that may point to possible
wrongdoing in the case of investigations and enquiries.

However, we also act in real-time to address matters within our remit when
we consider it necessary to protect the interests of the investing public and
the wider public interest in relation to the quality of financial reporting and
auditing of listed entities. It will be necessary for us to do so when a matter
has significant public interest implications and we would reasonably be
expected to communicate publicly or take regulatory action promptly.

We will not hesitate to respond to such matters without delay, when
identified through our monitoring of market events or through our
complaints, whistle-blower, or referrals channels, if there is an imminent
threat of significant harm to the public interest or to public confidence. When
we do so, we also consider the need for transparency about the actions we
are taking.

Our response and actions are designed to address the potential harm and
where appropriate to instil or restore public confidence that the FRC is
taking appropriate action to protect the public interest.

Looking forward

The year ahead is likely to continue to be defined by the economic
uncertainty caused by Covid-19, including how recovery in economic activity
and trade will be affected by the roll-out of vaccination programmes and how
companies that have been most significantly affected financially will fare as
Governments around the world withdraw from financial support. At the same
time, the prospect of economic recovery will bring economic opportunities
and a continuing need for capital. High quality financial reporting and
auditing of listed entities will continue to be critical in providing investors
with confidence in information about the financial performance of their listed
entity investments.

Internally, we will also likely face both some challenges and opportunities
in the coming year. There is no doubt that the impact of the general need
for fiscal discipline on our budgets will limit our ability to grow but there
remains opportunities to further enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of
our inspection, investigation and oversight functions to enable us to do even
more to serve the public interest with our current resources. Once travel
restrictions are eased, we wish to resume our duty visits to the Mainland to
further develop our relationships with the Mainland regulators and Bureaux.
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Overall, we look forward to playing our full part in addressing financial risks
to contribute to the stability and orderliness of Hong Kong’s capital markets
and the management of cross-boundary risks through even stronger cross-
boundary collaboration and cooperation to achieve our common goals. This
will enable us to protect the interests of the investing public in the quality
of financial reporting and auditing and to contribute to the safeguarding of
wider public interests in financial security and national security.

Appreciating sustained commitment and
unwavering support

On behalf of the Board, | extend our thanks to the Management and our
staff. They have achieved solid results despite all the challenges we
faced in the past 18 months. We have successfully launched our new
functions and rightly positioned ourselves in the financial regulation of
Hong Kong. We could not have delivered these achievements without
the passion, professionalism, expertise and commitment of our staff, who
are the unwavering driving force behind our stated mission. | would like to
acknowledge and express the Board’s earnest appreciation for their efforts,
devotion and achievements. | would also like to extend my heartiest thank
to our Board, Committee members, our Honorary Advisers, Members of the
Financial Reporting Review Panel and the Process Review Panel for their
dedication, guidance and steadfast support.

Last but by no means the least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to three retired Board members who have served the FRC for six years,
namely Mr Chan Tze Ching, Mr Wilson Fung and Ms Eirene Yeung.
Their valuable contributions helped to build the solid foundation for the
transformation of the FRC to the full-fledged independent auditor regulator
of Hong Kong.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THAEBRE

“Our primary focus in this
18-month financial year has been
on implementing each of our
new functions, building on the
preparatory work we did in the
last financial year”

[RARLI8ERMRFENEE
EX REL-—MERFENSET
1EER £ - Bt S IEMmBEE

Mr Marek Grabowski CEO
BHE 7TEAEH

Achieving our mission through performing our BITEEELERFE

functions

The achievement of our mission is affected by the quality of three regulated £ LT EEIBHERELRSAS B =EBHEKH
activities in the listed entity financial reporting ecosystem, which are SR EEEEA DAL EMNK B a0)) HE EAER -
interdependent.

The quality of the performance of HKICPA’s specified functions influences &ESFTEIASHERITEBRRE T HNEZTE L

the quality of audits performed by listed entity auditors and that in turn =~ EREZEENEFFEE - £MF ‘i“tmﬁ‘ﬁigiﬁﬁ%[ﬁ
influences the quality of financial reporting by listed entities. We now  #E 3% - ABERBEBHEIL LT BN E E#
regulate the performance of each of these activities as the independent 1% BEREZFEHHIRR -

regulator of listed entity auditors in Hong Kong.

Our primary focus in this 18-month financial year has been on implementing ~ BRIt 18E A B FENERSH - 2HE L/
each of our new functions, building on the preparatory work we did in the BFENEETEER L - BEESENBE - EHE

last financial year, including: e

«  Capacity building of our staff, property, technology and information  + I®BT - B &G - M AERERTED
resources; BETT
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 1T EUAAH 3R &

. Embedding our regulatory philosophy and culture;

. Establishing and implementing world class administrative and
operating policies and procedures; and

. Conducting and reporting on our new functions for the first time.

To enable us to perform our functions efficiently and fulfil our mission and
purpose effectively, our focus has also been on:

. Strengthening our collaboration with other regulators in Hong Kong,
the Mainland and overseas;

. Conducting and reporting on policy research;

. Conducting market surveillance and risk analysis; and

. Engaging with our stakeholders.

The following sections address some of the most significant challenges we
faced during the period. More details on the performance of our functions
are set out in our Operations and Financial Review.

Implementing our new functions

In addressing the internal challenges of establishing our new functions, we
have been able to meet these head on by:

. Early establishment of effective governance;

. Thorough planning;

. Starting with a small advanced team to focus on developing policies
and procedures while the remainder of the team was built gradually;

. Benchmarking the policies and procedures against other regulators
locally or in other international financial centres;

. Briefing our regulatees and being transparent about our operating
policies and procedures; and

. Effective implementation management with close oversight by the
Board and relevant Committee.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 1T ERAAH R &

In addition, we focused early on initiatives to address the challenges
of needing to grow our team significantly and integrate them with our
existing staff whilst renewing our culture. We invested in supporting our
strategy for acquisition, development and retention of talented people,
commissioning an external consultant to advise on a cohesive remuneration
and benefits structure in 2019 and again in 2020 to advise on developing an
integrated set of training, appraisal and promotion policies to support a self-
perpetuating cycle of development and high performance.

Addressing the impact of Covid-19

In early 2020, we also worked closely with auditors to understand the
practical challenges they faced in addressing the impact of Covid-19 and to
remind them of their duty to maintain their independence and audit quality
in doing so. We also collaborated closely with other regulators to address
possible disruption to the disclosure of financial reporting or the performance
of audits. The Joint Statement issued by the SFC and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong helped to address this.

Increasing the frequency of our e-News bulletins to quarterly, we also
provided timely advice to auditors, to highlight the challenges they might
face in dealing with risks to high quality financial reporting from deteriorating
economic conditions, and to directors of listed entities and audit committees
preparing and overseeing the preparation of financial statements in those
circumstances.

Cross boundary collaboration with Mainland
regulators

The high and growing proportion of Mainland enterprises listed on the Hong
Kong capital markets poses practical challenges for cross-boundary audit
quality management by audit firms, which has been exacerbated by travel
and quarantine restrictions due to Covid-19.

For audit work carried out in the Mainland, the working papers are subject
to strict vetting processes before permission can be given for them to be
taken outside the Mainland. This creates inherent administrative challenges
for us in obtaining access to such working papers for our inspections or
investigations and involves co-ordination of activities on both sides of the
boundary.

Early recognition of these challenges enabled us to focus on building a
strong relationship with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of
the PRC Ministry of Finance. We signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with the SEB on 22 May 2019, well before the commencement of
the amended FRCO. Since then we have been working through regular
liaison meetings and ongoing dialogue at working level to implement close
collaboration.
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Our first priority for collaboration has been in obtaining access to working
papers relating to audits of Hong Kong listed entities needed to support
our investigation function. Despite the practical challenges related to
the Covid-19 pandemic, with the assistance of the SEB we successfully
obtained the first batch of such working papers relating to seven
investigation cases in November 2020 and are working vigorously to
complete these investigations.

Building on the experience of early collaboration, we have been enhancing
our processes for coordinating the steps required to obtain the necessary
clearances as efficiently and effectively as is practical. We also began
discussions on the operating protocols to enable the FRC to obtain audit
working papers located in the Mainland for inspection purposes and
significant progress has been made with the support of the SEB.

Growth and specialisation in the listed markets
The success of Hong Kong’s capital markets as an entrep6t for capital
between the Mainland and international investors has driven both overall
rapid growth in the size of these markets and a focus on new economy and
pre-revenue biotech companies amongst new IPOs in recent years, and
these trends are expected to continue.

These developments have significant implications for auditors in building
and maintaining the necessary levels of resources and the expertise of
those resources, to maintain their ability to deliver high quality audits across
the markets. We monitor and respond to the related risks to audit quality in
selecting engagements to inspect and financial statements to review. We
are also addressing the need to diversify our own skill base as recruitment
opportunities arise.

Reporting to the public on the findings from our
work

Reporting to the public about the findings from our work enables us to
provide new intelligence and insights to the public about our findings and
their implications for our regulatory objectives, allows us to give directional
observations on our expectations to our regulatees, and enables us to draw
important matters to the attention of audit committee members who play an
important role in the governance oversight of financial reporting and auditing
for listed entities.

We have already published reports on the performance of our oversight
function (a report on our oversight of the HKICPAs performance of their
specified functions) and our inspection function (both an Interim and
Annual Inspection report). We have also published a first edition of a report
analysing the size and competition features of the market for listed entity
audit services (Overview of the Market for Listed Entity Audits in Hong
Kong).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 1T ERAAH R &

We also plan to issue a report on the work of our investigation and enquiry
function in the coming month and we will start reporting on our discipline
function when it is operational.

We aim for a high degree of transparency in reporting to the public about the
results of our work. In making judgments about the degree of transparency
to adopt in particular circumstances, we are guided by the need to maintain
justified public confidence in both:

. the quality of financial reporting; and

. that we are taking appropriate action to address public concerns about
how that quality may be affected by the performance of our regulatees.

For example, in determining whether to publish an individual firm’s audit
quality ratings in our first Annual Inspection report, we decided it was
appropriate to do so for the listed entity audit firms that audit more than 100
listed entities. Collectively, those firms audit listed entities whose aggregate
market capitalisation is nearly 90% of the total for Hong Kong’s capital
markets.

Publishing this information provides transparency about the quality of a
firm’s listed entity audit engagements and also provides a powerful incentive
to firms to improve the quality of their listed entity audits, which would
enhance confidence in the quality of financial reporting by PIEs.

Looking ahead

The economic uncertainties and accumulated financial impact of Covid-19
are likely to bring challenges for some listed entities. They will need to
carefully evaluate and address the liquidity and solvency risks they face.
These risks and the underlying uncertainties will have implications for
the evaluation of the reasonableness of key assumptions to be made by
such listed entities in reporting about their going concern status and in
determining key accounting estimates in their financial statements.

Their auditors will also have to address the same challenges and their
professional scepticism will be essential in challenging the appropriateness
of the conclusions reached by listed entities to protect the interests of
investors.

We will also strive to engage auditors constructively with the need to
understand the root causes of, and address, the audit quality issues we
have identified through our 2020 inspections of their audit engagements.
Hand in hand with this we will also be monitoring the effectiveness of their
implementation of significant changes to the standards for audit firm quality
management that will become effective in December 2022.
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MEHEBERTISAT(ERT0% °

T BN RS FHAN LM ERE AR ERN
FEHE - TARESIRE LM EEENER
EMERRARERARMNRERBYBERLRNEL -

REARR
KERERMEERESM2ENT BT E - ATeel
ETEMEREERIS - 2 TREARETERE
HETHENRDES MEHEBORR - ZFRARK
AN T REER R - Wi %S L m B RAEERN -
SRS SRR R EE B R P W EREHAEHE
BIERRRE - BB E -

REF AR BED /AR ETARR P S o REED R F R AR
CEER EMEEMSERESEE N ESERH
C ARBHREE A -
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BTN BAZBENE R ZRIEEE - AR
R20204F TR B P AT EMES ERMENRAK
RE - WIELES o EURR - HMTFEEEREY
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Acknowledgements and thanks

As this is my first annual statement since my appointment as CEO on 12
October 2020, | would like to give credit to the outstanding leadership of Ms
Florence Wong, as Acting CEO, prior to my appointment. | would also like
to thank our Chairman, Dr Kelvin Wong, JP, and my fellow Board members
and Committee members for their wise advice and untiring support since |
took up the role.

My personal and wholehearted gratitude is also due to all my staff and to my
management team for their collective efforts to work with me, and before my
appointment under the leadership of the Acting CEO, to drive the success of
the FRC in this critical and formative year.

We all have much to be proud of as we look back and some new challenges
as well as opportunities to address and seize as we look ahead. | look
forward to working with you in the coming year to build on the solid
groundwork we have set this year. Together, we will continue to develop
and advance the FRC with passion to deliver our mission and meet our
public interest purpose.

1 2 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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LA A 82020510 A 12 BB Z E ATTE A AR
MENFERSE - AAZBLREIEREESEITR
HENTERELTOELEGRTHE - RATEL
RAETEERMEL  AFHTUREERKERE
SEKE AARANERRM G THREZE RSN

# o

RIES - RANMRLBHERETREREEK - £T
YRR B A BIERL - PARA A AERATEZ IR T
REBETEN MR - BE—Z EABERERM

OEBE  RMAFZESASHKE  MERER
K BB L HEREE RICEAFHB RS -
AARFERRMAERFLBER  EAFECEEN
BREERE FIEEATTT c EARKEBELHNZT - B
EEZ DR EARNERE L —EE  JUEKE
IR ERBIREARFEN AR -

Mr Marek Grabowski
Bh%k&E

Chief Executive Officer
TTECAREL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HEER

Mission &5

The mission of the FRC is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed entities in Hong Kong, so as to enhance
protection for investors and deepen investor confidence in corporate reporting.
HERBNMHEE LT EBMBERLE R - EMIBREHREENRE  RSREFUCEERNED -

W

Core Values #Z/MBE

The FRC is committed to the following core values:
ITSE R DB MR T IR EE

* Independence and impartiality o BIARRNIE
The FRC operates independently. We perform HISERBERULEED - ARAFQILE
our functions fairly, impartially and consistently, REBBMHITIE  TEREHERAMLET
free from interference by the auditing profession BEEBHNTE  hEeRBURET ©
and listed entities, and from political pressure.

b

«  Accountability and transparency - AERAESEHE
The FRC believes that as a regulator, we MBERBRAEER—REEHKE - &
should be accountable and transparent. We ERENLAESERE - ABBKREESR
publish operational statistics, information on TEUE  PAENEANER REMBE -

ay

investigations and enquiries, and other reports. FHEALDNRTHRABKEE  REKXD
This allows the profession and the public to B TIERIRVEL B9 HIET -

understand our operations and facilitates
judgment of our performance.

-

ERIEME  EFRMERETRKA
ERFREKFHBE - RRRRITERBR
ABBEREBRNBRELE -

* Integrity
Given the nature of our work, Board Members
and staff must be of the highest integrity. We
adhere to high ethical standards in conducting
our activities.

R RE
RRARGADR  ARRFEENTA
ERA BRI o

*  Proficiency
We pledge to achieve our missions efficiently,
effectively and professionally.

MISER B « 2019-215F 3] FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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Strategic Focus REEER
As the independent auditor regulator of Hong Kong, the FRC is determined  {E&% A SR ES E AR - BATSIESRBIR OB B
to fulfil our mission and vision through the following strategies: THEUEHEABNEGMNES
4 R
e Safeguarding public interest through the implementation of an
— @ objective and transparent regulatory framework
— é FRBMREELARAENEERER  #EB AT m
J
4 R
O O Connecting and collaborating with financial regulators locally, in
[_(7\'_] the Mainland and globally to enhance audit quality
T B - PO RER S REE ISR TR RAE  LUEHE
ATEE
J
)
Nk O Introducing new initiatives to retain, acquire and develop talent
N
\I | to achieve effective regulatory outcomes
I Di HWITHREURE - BBIEEAT - WERBRHEEKR
J
, )
/\] Creating an open and frank corporate culture for the sustainable
development of the FRC
000 e e I
Nemy SEREAANDEXIL - EARKERRIES
N J
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Governance Structure

R

Honorary Advisory Panel Board
HEEERE

Process Review Panel
=Y EFERESS

Committees Audit Investigation Board Fmszsli::NRssggmg
ZE® EHHEEEE

MBERIRN ZEE

BV AV AV

\ ( \ [ \ \ 3\ ' v N
Investigation Ov§r5|ght, Finance and Compensation Financial
. Policy and Corporate s .
Inspection and Governance Affairs and Nomination Reporting
Committee Compliance Committee Committee Committee Review
EREEE® Committee N R o 2 & Committee
HEZES oo 2 o RREEE MBERRTEZES
HEEZE ELERS EHEEe REEE TSE R & B
\ J U J \ J \ J \ J L J

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE #i#& &8

-

Financial

Reporting

souncil

;53

B

The Board
BEER

Board Chairman

EEREE

1

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP
BAHEEL - KFEL

Board Members

EZRARE

2

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
BOMRSE - RER)E
il

Mr Eugene Fung, SC
FERERBST A - BIRALERD
Mr Marek Grabowski
(CEOQ)!

BhkE (ITHHEE)
Mr Stephen Hung
RREERA

Ms Miranda Kwok
IS 2+

Ms Rosita Lee
{2+

Mr Stephen Lee
THRERE

10

11

12

13

14

Mr Keith Lui?
BHESRLE

Dr Lin Yong, JP
ORI L - KL

Mr Francis Siu

EEL: S

Mr Peter Wan
FEREEE

Ms Florence Wong
(Deputy CEO)?
FTERAX (BRI THARE)
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS,
JP

ERESSE - EFIES -
PN b

Appointed as CEO with effect from 12 October 2020
720204510 A 12 A EZE R THAEE

Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020
72020510 A1 B EEE
Appointed with effect from 6 December 2019
M20195F12 A6 B EZE (T

1 6 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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The Board

The Board is the highest governing body of the FRC. Currently, the Board
comprises 14 members including the Chairman who is non-executive, 11
non-executive directors and 2 executive directors.

Profiles of Board Members

Chairman

EE

5ER

E=ZREVBESRRNERRELAHE  EERM14%
B - BIRERGEAIT) MBIFRTEFR2
BHITEE -

ESRAERHE

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (from 2018-12-15; current appointment expires on
2021-09-30)

ERMEL - KF# 1+ (H2018-12-154E : IREFTH
#1742021-09-30 & % )

Dr Wong is the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Council and a member
of the Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption.

He is an Executive Director, a Deputy Managing Director and the Chairman
of Corporate Governance Committee of COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited.
He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of four listed companies
in Hong Kong.

He was a Non-Executive Director of Securities and Futures Commission
(2012-2018), the Chairman of Investor and Financial Education Council
(2017-2018), the Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (2009-
2014), a member of Financial Reporting Council (2015-2018), a convenor-
cum-member of Financial Reporting Review Panel (2013-2016), a member
of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (2010-2016), a member
of Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (2007-2013) and a member of Auditing and Assurance
Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2006-2008).

Dr Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Andrews
University in Michigan, USA, and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

-

ERLRVBESRRIRERBEAZREEFRHE
HAERBEXE -

MRPEFEBARRATNITESE EFFEKE
RABEREZEEGIR - W R4RER LT REE
SIFRITEE -

G AES M EEHERE 8 @ IENITES(2012-
2018) - A E MM HEZEEEF(2017-2018) »
BEBEEBE X F(2009-2014) - HiSER DK E
(2015-2018) * I ERBTEZEB B EARKE
(2013-2016) * A AIVAN E H K ZE 8 € £ 8 (2010-
2016) « BAMERFER AR ERMAIZER ETE
B EAE(2007-2013) kR BB G FTHAN A & R B 1% F
#H|% 8 €% 8(2006-2008) °

HiE LA EEZ IR Andrews University T &
BETEMREEETIASTHERE 20 -

1 8 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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Members

E

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on
2021-09-30)

BOmE L KEHE . AFH+(H2019-10-01
8 BRI RS 722021-09-30/E 7 )

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). He has chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting Standards
Committee and has also been a member of the International Financial
Reporting Standards Advisory Council.

Mr Eugene Fung, SC (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on
2021-09-30)

BOMEL L BERE) - MERD GREITHNEBA
TERAMEEEHAGER  QREEEMBRESE
AZEgXF  TEEEREBRELEAEREZSS
HIRKE -

BEELE  ERAEH(FH2018-12-0148 : BT
HA454.2021-09-30/E )

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of
commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property litigation, professional
negligence, and company and insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the
High Court, the Chairman of the Banking Review Tribunal, the Chairman
of the Process Review Panel in relation to the Regulation of Mandatory
Provident Fund Intermediaries, and the Chairman of the Process Review
Panel for the Insurance Authority. He was a member of the Law Reform
Commission of Hong Kong from 2012 to 2018.

Mr Marek Grabowski (from 2020-10-12; current appointment expires on
2023-10-11)

BAER—BILAREZRKEA - thEBEE - =
FOE  BERE - BEE  MEFD  BERZUR
RNEVERWELFERELEELESR - 2o AR
BEEE  RITEBEREHREIR  HERHIEATE
SHRNABRFERZESIREMRBREEERIEFE
BEEGEE o bHR2012F E2018F M EIE A
FERELZEEERE -

55 77554 ($22020-10-1248 + T B (F HA 4672 2023-10-
11fE)

Mr Grabowski is the CEO and Executive Director of the FRC. A veteran
in the accounting profession, he was the Director of Audit Policy of the
Financial Reporting Council of the United Kingdom (UK FRC) whereby
he led the development and maintenance of the standards for auditing,
assurance and professional ethics for auditors and reporting accountants.
Prior to joining the UK FRC in 2010, he was a Partner of an international
accounting firm for 20 years, taking up technical, audit and capital markets
transaction reporting roles in the UK and overseas.

BSHELERYBERBOTRERLIITES - bR
BIFRERAL  BERBEFBERRDBABRE
& BESEMASSEEITNERS T RIMET &
EREFBEAER - E2010F WA KB P BERRD
ZH R RER S M ESAETARA T
F o ERBEEIINEERIN - BAMEATSRFE
REYTAE

J

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R
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(

-

Mr Stephen Hung (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

AEIE (5 54 (F32018-12-01 %8 ¢ IR E ER 5 522021-
09-30/& M)

Mr Hung is a Past President of the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is
currently the Chairman of the Law Society’s Legal Education Committee and
Criminal Law and Procedure Committee.

In his own capacity, Mr Hung serves on the Communications Authority, Law
Reform Commission, Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme
Vetting Committee, and Financial Reporting Council. He is the Chairman of
the Duty Lawyer Service Council.

Mr Hung is an Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University,
the Law School of Beijing Normal University and Visiting Professor of the
Faculty of International Law of China University of Political Science and Law
in Beijing, China.

Ms Miranda Kwok (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

frEMEEARMEN e R  BERMEEEHEE
BEIRMNERFDEFEZEESLE -

SO - FRERVABA S DRBREBLERELZE
B ABREERRBRUEERBHERAER
B BAEKERRKE  RUBERBKE
NEEEFMREZEELRE -

FRERTTEEBMCABEREE - ALRAEAEA
ERFRBHE R BEBCERSREERRR T EH

T

037 5 2 + (1 2018-12-01 2 : IREF(EER 5722021
09-30/& %)

Ms Kwok is the President and Executive Director of China Construction
Bank (Asia). She has been serving the bank for over 37 years. She is
Vice-President of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, member of the
EFAC Financial Infrastructure and Market Development Sub-committee,
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board, the Air
Transport Licensing Authority as well as the Standing Committee on Judicial
Salaries and Condition of Services. Ms Kwok graduated with an Honorable
Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and Management from
the University of Hong Kong in 1984, and graduated with honors from the
Graduate School of Retail Bank Management of the Consumer Bankers
Association in the United States in July 2001.

IR BRBELRIT(EMN) BBRITTRENTE
F o WRFEKIRITHBIBITEF - BRTAEBTEIRITZ
BEN  EREERER —RINBEBBITRBEEE -
WRASERTEEEER  WETINEESENE
BEBRTHERERKMSEREEGEE - &8
AERRBBEHAZEEZEER ZEMRBRBKRER
AVEANBFELRBEGEBEZESEELE - TR
1984 F B MBS RERE It ehlEagEa 2
il » EBEERERE - B52001 F7ABEHER
TERTRAGHENTERITEELBEER -
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Ms Rosita Lee (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

Z{fl i} Z + (R 2018-12-01# : IR EF L HA 72 2021-
09-30fE7m)

Ms Lee is the Head of Investment Products and Advisory Business of Hang
Seng Bank Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng
Investment Management Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Hang Seng Investment Services Limited, a Director of Hang Seng Qianhai
Fund Management Company Limited, and a member of China Committee of
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. Apart from Financial Reporting
Council, she also serves a number of public appointments in Hong Kong,
including Securities and Futures Commission, Legal Aid Services Council,
The Sir David Trench Fund for Recreation, The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Music and Dance Fund, and the Correctional Services Children’s Education
Trust.

Mr Stephen Lee (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

FTRBEERTERRANREERRBARERT
B EEREEEBRARZESRITHMAE - BE
REARBERARZEERITHASR - BEMBEES
ERBRARZEENAEEHETREEEGKE -
B THBERRIN - EETMEEZIARE - R
EERRRENEREEES MM EEREREE
g EREDRER - BBLE T REESKREAES
ZBg AEERSELNERERESZES
BHEBEANEFLHAETEGREENEZES -

25 B %54 (F2019-10-01#E8 3R B (L HA S 72 2021-
09-30f&;iw)

Mr Lee has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management at KPMG in London and Hong Kong. He retired from KPMG
in 2011 as Partner-in-Charge of the Risk Consulting practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, Mainland China and the Asia Pacific region, and
is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The Institute
of Internal Auditors Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director at a number of companies.

He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and is an associate member of The Institute of Directors and The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

Dr Lin Yong, JP (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

FEEMRBNEBNE TG EHIES BB
0FEMEF - BB E LR - bR20115 1
EBEEK  EREEFHEL - PEAMBEEAM
BRBAAXBNIEABA  BETEEPXAE
RBEHE  YRERBANSEZMNESHEER -
R ERARBELIFNTES -

SRS AR R KRS &
FAGMERER - L REFRGRNBREAGE
HEEE -

MOBEE L ATF4 (B 2019-10-017%8 : IREE(EEDE
7 2021-09-30/& 7 )

Dr. LIN Yong is a senior executive of Haitong Securities (Stock Code:
600837SH, 6837HK), CEO of Haitong International Holdings, Deputy
Chairman and CEO at Haitong International Securities Group (Stock
Code: 0665HK) and Chairman of Haitong Bank, S.A. He is also the Deputy
Director of the International Cooperation Strategy Committee of Securities
Association of China, member of Mainland Opportunities Committee of
Financial Services Development Council, Chairman of Chinese Securities
Association of Hong Kong, founding Deputy Chairman of Chinese Financial
Association of Hong Kong, and member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.

B LIR RERES (IRH IR - 600837SH - 6837.
HK) G RERKE @ BREBZERTRER - 88
BIpRE S (R SR - 0665HK) B £ B3 1T 4R
B OBRRITIR - MBELBATAATEESEHS
BREEEZESGRITE BEERERBAMESE
HRE - BRPEERERESR - BETESRE
BRIGRIEEREESRBRKE
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(

-

Mr Keith Lui (from 2020-10-01; current appointment expires on 2022-09-
30)

B Y 554 (R 2020-10-01 8
09-30/& M)

3 B 1 5 171 2022-

Mr Lui was the Executive Director (August 2006 — August 2019) of the
Supervision of Markets Division of the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC). During his service at the SFC, he was the Chairman of the Investor
Compensation Fund Committee, and the Securities Compensation Fund
Committee, and member of the Advisory Committee, Investment Committee,
and SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee. He was also a member of the Statutory
Risk Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited. He has worked for various financial institutions in the US and Hong
Kong in the areas of deposit taking and lending, asset management and
investment banking.

Mr Francis Siu (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-
30)

EBhREEIBRFRNEERERZE S (REY)MS
EEEREHNTTAEEE (20064F 8 5 £2019F8 ) » £ E
SRR - Y ETREEREESZTEENES
BEESZECEE  URkFHHAZES REZES
ﬁ%@@?%x%%im)iAaﬁaoﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

REEMERARAERREZZEENKE - b

Mr Siu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

He graduated from the University of Sheffield UK in 1979. After that, he
joined KPMG Manchester, UK and returned to Hong Kong in 1986 and
became a partner of KPMG Hong Kong in 1993. From 2000 to 2002, he
was a senior partner of KPMG Shanghai Office. From 2002 to March 2010,
he was a senior partner of KPMG Beijing Office and a senior partner of
Northern Region, KPMG China.

He is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

%E%ﬁﬂ%ﬁmy%é@%ﬁlw BEBRNE
B BEEEMRERITERS -

B {E5 554 (h2019-10-01#E : IRESTHAK 12 2021-
09-30f&;iw)
ELEABBEHMASNER g BT EstiD
DNEMNEFREE -

979 FE B SIEM AL EE - FEAVMARS
BEREHMEHEE KA 1986 FHLOEERE S
FHAT - WN993F K ARS BB B EHAMETA
# A o H20004F £2002F BifE « b AR B EER
CHMESA EESETEaRAR AR - kA
2002 £2010F3 A Hi - NEFRERSFHAIEH
It R PRt R B e B ARG - WEEHEE
REMEBMELREFEABA

AR IPEE A Ee M s NCTR i IF S s /NI 0 - Ave
FEMITES -
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Mr Peter Wan (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-
30)

F 708 £ 4 (F32019-10-01 % © 3R R (E E 15 522021-
09-30/& M)

Mr Wan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of practising experience and was a
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers before retirement. He has since been
invited to join the Board of Directors of a number of listed companies as
Independent Non-Executive Director. He currently serves as the Treasurer
and Council Member of the Open University of Hong Kong and has held
stewardship positions in several NGOs and service organisations.

Ms Florence Wong (from 2019-12-06; current appointment expires on
2022-12-05)

FRERBEGHAAGERGE REH=TF
RIKATRESFACE ST EBINEREEA - BE
BRESMAZR ETARZERR - HEBUIFRT
Ex - FREBRRBEBARABAERRNEGKS -

SN - MIETER S 82 RIEBTARLE R RIS ENE
ATfE

FEEZ £+ ($2019-12-06 % : R (E B 15 52 2022-
12-05/E ) )

Ms Wong is an Executive Director, Deputy CEO and Head of Oversight,
Policy and Governance of the FRC. She has extensive regulatory knowledge
and experience in financial reporting and auditing. She is a former member
of the Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). Prior to joining the FRC, Ms
Wong worked in the HKICPA and an international accounting firm. She is
qualified as a certified public accountant and a certified internal auditor.

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (from 2014-12-01; current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30)

FTLTRUBEBBITES  BIITRERREE
HERREARBEE - EXTEYHERIE T HEZE

LENEENINEER - ETESMASHH
WEEINZESWREKE - ENARBERDZ
Al ERtBAEBREHMASN —REFSHAE
AT < b A M stal MM ARSI E
1& o

BERERSE  WEAEE - AF#H+(H2014-12-01
A8 BRI RS 72021-09-30/E 7 )

Mr Wong was a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (2009-2015) and a member of the Listing Committee of the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(1999-2003). He was an audit partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong
Kong before his retirement in June 2005. He has served/ is serving as
an independent Non-Executive Director of several companies listed
in Hong Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory committees and
statutory bodies established by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, boards of charities and councils of universities.

EhREABEFRPESHERZBEZIENITES
(2009F 220155 ) R BB AR 5T AR A 7 Al %
R ETHZE B &k B (1999-2003) ° I AE S 2 L
KEEHEHMNETEEA - WH20055F6 AR
Kot B AR AR EMARMNBYIENTES -
b TRARFS I 2 BB B4 BITTIR @ R T 2 765 5 R A e i
% ERFMRECEERRBEAZORES -

~

J
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Membership and attendance at Board meetings during the 18-month  EZ2021F3A31AM18EAHE  EEREFHE

period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHERMOT
Meetings attended/held
SEHEEBTRE
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) EAMEL - KFah+(EE) 11/11
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMSE - REBE - KTt 7/11
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP! BRFESEE - EHEE - Kt 5/5
Mr Marek Grabowski (CEQ)2 55 750 (AT £ )2 5/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC BRI - BIRAER 8/11
Mr Wilson Fung' I RE S A 5/5
Mr Stephen Hung RRIBIE A 10/11
Mr Stephen Lee ZHELEE 11/11
Dr Lin Yong, JP MOBEL - KAt 1111
Mr Keith Lui® BRSNS 6/6
Ms Miranda Kwok IS 2+ 11/11
Ms Rosita Lee EXE R 10/11
Mr Francis Siu mEm ket 10/11
Mr Peter Wan FERELE 11/11
Ms Florence Wong (Deputy CEO)* TR (BIFTEAAE ) 11/11
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERELE - REFEE - KAt 9/10
Ms Eirene Yeung' TR £ 4/5
The average attendance rate at meeting was 93%. ZETHILE LRI ©

EEARR 20209 A30H fEim
72020F10 A 12 B EZ T AITHAER
720205F10 81 A EZ(T
2019612 6 HEZ (T

Term expired on 30 September 2020

Appointed as CEO with effect from 12 October 2020
Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020
Appointed with effect from 6 December 2019

AW N o
FNERR TR SR
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Committees

Five committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the
FRC. Each committee comprises Board Members and Honorary Advisers
with a wide spectrum of expertise.

Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the Inspection Manual (which would cover areas
such as inspection strategy, the inspection process, guidelines for
grading the performance of a firm in an inspection).

To provide advice on the proposed annual inspection plan to be
approved by the Board.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on
inspection findings, grading or follow-up action in individual cases.

To provide advice on the extent of publication of inspection findings on
individual firms (e.g. to the audit committee of the related listed entity,
or to the public), and the contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the annual inspection activity report of the FRC
to be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the inspection function by selecting sample completed
inspections.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.

Summary of work

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

Endorsed the annual inspection plan of the Department of Inspection
for 2020 and 2021

Endorsed the Inspection Operations Manual

Endorsed the Interim and Annual Inspection Reports for 2020
Performed an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the inspection function by selecting sample completed

inspections for 2020

Provided advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the #EZ2021F3A31AMW18EAHE  ZESSFHE

18-month period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHERMOT

Meetings attended/held

SERHEEBTRE

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (Chairman) BN L - RBRE - KV (FE) 6/6
Ms Rosita Lee (Vice Chairman) MM+ (5 ) 6/6
Mr Clement Chan, MH, JP PREBECIAE - BRBENE - KP4t 6/6
Mr Eugene Fung,SC SRS - BIRAER 5/6
Ms Grace Huit SRR 2t 3/3
Mr Keith Lui? BRI 3/3
Mr Benjamin Rhys A 5/5
Mr Francis Siu BEREE 5/6
Mr Peter Wan FERERE 6/6
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERRAE - REFIEE - KP4+ 6/6
Mr Stephen Wong FrE . 6/6
Prof Wayne Yu AEEHIE 6/6
The average attendance rate at meeting was 97%. GHETIHEERITY%
1 Appointed with effect from 6 October 2020 1 72020F10 A6 HEZ (T
2 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 2 20206F10 A1 B EE T
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Investigation and Compliance Committee
The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters
concerning the investigation and enquiry functions.

Terms of reference

. To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies,
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operation of the
investigation and enquiry functions.

. To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus,
for the financial statements review programme annually.

. To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditing
and professional ethics as identified by staff.

. To receive operation reports of the Investigation and Compliance
Department, oversee the progress of enquiries, investigations,
complaints and financial statements reviews and provide
recommendation on operational matters.

. To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the complaint and review handling function by selecting
sample completed cases of complaints and reviews which are closed
without further action.

. To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and
enquiry functions as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Summary of work
. Considered the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints, and
financial statements reviews;

. Considered the proposed delegation of powers under the new regime;

. Considered the operation manual under the Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance;

. Considered the work plan of the 2020 cycle of the Financial Statements
Review Programme;

. Considered the procedures of the Investigation and Compliance
Committee Review Programme (ICC Review Programme) and its work

plan for the 2019-2021 review cycle;

. Reviewed ten selected cases for the first and second phases of the
2019-2021 review cycle under the ICC Review Programme;

. Advised on the work plan on the investigations with audit working
papers received from the PRC’s Ministry of Finance; and

. Advised on the proposed action in response to comments from the
Process Review Panel
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the #EZ2021F3A31AMW18EAHE  ZESSFHE

18-month period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHERMOT

Meetings attended/held

SEHEEBTRE

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) ERREE  WEFAEE - KEHT(EE) 6/6
Mr Peter Wan (Vice Chairman) FEBEE(BIEE) 6/6
Mr Chew Fook Aun FRREE 5/6
Mr Eugene Fung, SC! BRI - BIRAEAD 1/2
Mr Wilson Fung? IR 2 3/4
Ms Ashley Khoo Eisflct 6/6
Ms Wincey Lam ML L 6/6
Mr Stephen Lee THEBSE 5/6
Mr Anthony Leung RINR 6/6
Dr Lin Yong, JP WREL - KFaL 6/6
Mr Jackson Woo? FARBE A2 4/4
Ms Eirene Yeung? g 12 3/4
The average attendance rate was 89%. SR THHREERE%
1 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 1 2020510 A1 BEZ T
2 Term expired on 30 September 2020 2 EEIPA 202049 A30H [E i

MISER B « 2019-215F 3] FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ##& &8

Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee

The Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning the FRC’s oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of
specified functions and matters concerning policy research and guidance on
governance issues for stakeholders and beneficiaries concerned with the
aim of enhancing the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

. To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Department of
Oversight, Policy and Governance and oversee the performance of
executives to ensure effective implementation of the approved annual
plan.

. To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of HKICPA’s
performance of specified functions (i.e. registration, setting of
standards for ethics and auditing and assurance practices, and setting
of requirements for continuing professional development in relation to
PIE auditors), including recommendations to HKICPA on performance
of specified functions, and advise the Board on the exercise of the
power to issue directions to HKICPA under section 10(1A)(c) of the
FRC Ordinance.

. To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit
and corporate governance for identification and prioritization of
research proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the
above matters.

. To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives
being undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of
financial reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant
publications and thought leadership projects.

. To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time.
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Summary of Work

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

Advised the Board on the annual plan of the Department of Oversight,
Policy and Governance, and monitored the implementation of the
approved annual plan.

Provided comments on the report on the FRC’s Assessment of the
HKICPA'’s Performance of the Specified Functions..

Advised on the research proposal and the report of the Overview of the
Market of the Listed Entity Audits on Hong Kong.

Advised on the research proposal of the Audit Committee Guidance
regarding selection, appointment and reappointment of auditors.

Provided input and perspective on the potential research topics which
were conducive to enhancing the quality of financial reporting, audit
and corporate governance.

Considered the operations manual of the oversight of the HKICPA’s
performance of the specified functions and the recognition of overseas
auditors.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the #EZ2021F3A31AMW18EAHE  ZESSFHE

18-month period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHERMOT

Meetings attended/held

BENEBITRY
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP' (Chairman) BRFBEE @ EFIRE KT (FE) 313
Ms Rosita Lee (Chairman) (from 1 October 2020) ZE{ifi 2+ (%) (1202010 1B #) 5/5
(Vice-Chairman) (up to 30 September 2020) (8)F/E) (2202069 A308 1F)

Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman) (from 1 October 2020) ZBIE 5o 4 (52 /%) (12020410 A1H ) 5/5
Ms Melissa Brown Melissa Brown 3/5
Mr Michael Cheng BEBEE 3/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC' ISR LA - BRAER 313
Mr Stephen Hung RREELE 3/5
Mr Keith Lui EROLRE 5/5
Mr Francis Siu WEBLE 5/5
Mr Paul Smith? Paul Smith%t 42 4/4
Ms Nancy Tse, JP #EB L KFHL 5/5
Ms Florence Wong (Deputy CEQ) THEBz T (BITHEE) 5/5
Mr Jackson Woo? FAREE S s 2/2
The average attendance rate was 91%. FETHLEERRI%
1 Term expired on 30 September 2020 ! THIRN 2020479 A30 A fEim
2 Appointed with effect from 5 February 2020 2 202052 A5BEZR (T
3 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 3 720205F10 A1 HEZ T
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Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on
finance, budgeting, audit of the FRC’s financial statements, corporate
communications, administration and other corporate matters of the FRC.

Terms of reference

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to finance, administration, information
technology and corporate communications matters.

To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee
the implementation of the audit recommendations.

To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft
annual budget and forecast, including review and monitor the actual

performance against budget.

To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury
management and related performance.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial
sustainability of the FRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure.

To make recommendations to the Board on the award of the tender for
procurement with an amount exceeding HK$1 million.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

To formulate strategies on external communications and promotion of
public awareness of the FRC.

To exercise an oversight on the effective implementation of the
communications and public promotion strategies.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Summary of work

Reviewed the annual financial statements for the nine-month period
ended 30 September 2019 and the related audit findings, and oversaw
the implementation of the recommendations arising from the audit.

Reviewed and monitored the actual performance against budget for
the 18-month period ended 31 March 2021

Reviewed and endorsed the draft annual budget and forecast for 2021-
22 for consideration by the Board.

Endorsed the revised procurement manual.

Endorsed the entertainment, sponsored visit/training policy and
procedures manual.

Reviewed and advised on the corporate communications strategies.

Endorsed engagement of Willis Towers Watson to assist in the revamp
of the training, appraisal and promotion policies.
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Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the EZ2021F3A31AM18EAHE  ZESSFHE

18-month period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHERMOT
Meetings attended/held
BENEBITRY
Mr Wilson Fung' (Chairman) BEE R (L/E) 5/5
Ms Miranda Kwok (Chairman) BRF L+ (FE)

(from 1 October 2020) (F120204F10 A1 B #E) 6/7
Mr Francis Siu? (Vice-Chairman) WmERLEAFLE) 2/2
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP! BRFBSEE - SHEHIEE - KFamT 4/5
Dr Eva Chan PRATEETS + 77
Mr Marek Grabowski3 (CEQ) 5 H e s (1T AR, 2/2
Mr Stephen Hung RREE R E 617
Ms Wincey Lam MEELZ L 7
Ms Rosita Lee! 2 3 A £ 4/5
Dr Lin Yong, JP wEE L - KFEHL 6/7
Mr Keith Pogson B 6/7
Mr David Stannard? HERE ST 2/5
Mr Richard Tsang B ESEA 6/7
Ms Florence Wong¢ (Deputy CEO) FEBLZT(BATEAEE) 4/4
The average attendance rate was 88%. ERTHHREER88% -

1 Term expired on 30 September 2020 1 EEI7 202049 A30H &
2 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 2 H2020F10 A1 HEZ T

3 Appointed with effect from 12 October 2020 3 720209F10 A 12 B EZ AT
4 4

Appointed with effect from 7 December 2019 and term expired on 11 October 2020. 2019512 A7BEZ (T - EHIR20205F10 A1 B Eim
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Compensation and Nomination Committee

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on
all human resources related matters and nominations to be made or
recommended by the FRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies, procedures and related issues.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of
staff remuneration.

To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market.

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Deputy CEO,
Executive Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel).

To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the

Government that are relevant for the FRC.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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Summary of Work

Endorsed the policy on management staff taking up public service.

Endorsed the policy on nomination for appointment and reappointment
of members to Financial Reporting Review Panel and the Honorary
Advisory Panel.

Advised on the revamp of training, appraisal and promotion policies.

Considered the recommendations concerning the appointment
of Honorary Advisors and changes to the composition of Board
Committees.

Considered the recommendations for nominations for appointment to
the Financial Reporting Review Panel.

Considered the recommendations for salary increment for staff for
2020.

Considered the recommendations for the award of discretionary
variable pay to the eligible staff members for the period from October
2019 to March 2020.

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the
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18-month period ended 31 March 2021 were as follows: RERHEFEERNT :
Meetings attended/held
SREEBTRY
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) FERAE LT - Kt (EE) 5/5
Ms Miranda Kwok (Vice-chairman) IF L (FIF/E) 5/5
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOmES A - RBBE - KT 5/5
Mr Marek Grabowski' (CEQ) BAEAE (TTBARE) 11
Mr Francis Mok RRBESE 5/5
Mr David Stannard? SeiERE ST A 11
Ms Florence Wong? (Deputy CEO) FERBLT(FIITEEE) 4/4
Ms Eirene Yeung* s w4 3/4
The average attendance rate was 97%. ERTHLEREERR/IT%
Appointed with effect from 12 October 2020 R2020F10 128 EZ (T
Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 #20206F10 A1 HEZE T

1
2
3
4
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Appointed with effect from 7 December 2019 and term expired on 11 October 2020
Term expired on 30 September 2020
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Organisation Structure

Legal Department
EEE

1TTHRAE

RS

Management'
EEE

( ( N\ (
Department of
Department of Oversight, Department of
Department of =2 .mer.I © Department of v§r3|g (-?pa ment o
. Investigation . Policy and Finance and
Inspection . Discipline . :
Hmm and Compliance amEa Governance Administration
= = AR BE - K% B R 4T BB
REBE
| | J 0

1 Management comprises heads of departments and General Counsel.
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Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQO), appointed by the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), leads the staff
to manage the operations of the FRC to ensure that the organisation’s
statutory functions are performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the FRC are carried out by different departments with
clear segregation of responsibilities.

Department of Inspection

The Department of Inspection is responsible for carrying out inspections
with the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection
focuses on how a PIE auditor conducted PIE engagements and on the
effectiveness of the PIE auditor’s quality control system to determine
whether the applicable professional standards and legal and regulatory
requirements have been complied with.

Department of Investigation and Compliance

The Department of Investigation and Compliance is responsible for carrying
out the investigation and enquiry functions of the FRC. It may initiate
an investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the public,
referrals from other regulators, the FRC’s own financial statements review
programme or internal referrals arising from inspections of PIE auditors.

Department of Discipline

The Department of Discipline is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the FRC. It will take firm and appropriate action in cases of
misconduct by applying commensurate sanctions for the purposes of
deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the audit
quality of listed entities and upholding the standards of conduct among PIE
auditors and registered responsible persons.

Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance

The Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance is responsible for
overseeing the performance of the HKICPA in respect of their functions of
registration, setting of standards for ethics and auditing and assurance, and
setting of requirements for continuing professional development in relation
to PIE auditors, and for recognising non-Hong Kong auditors who intend to
undertake and/or carry out any PIE engagement for overseas entities. The
Department will also conduct policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publish guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R
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Department of Finance and Administration B R AT BUER

The Department of Finance and Administration is responsible for managing M EITHIASERWKIERSEBEIE - BE -
matters in relation to finance, budget, human resources, corporate ~ AN&R * EIEEARITRHETRS -
communication and general administration of the FRC.

Legal Department SEEER

The Legal Department is responsible for providing legal advice to all S AEIEBRASHFIURLEZER - WARKINEHEI
departments and vital support to the successful delivery of departmental — PIEREME[EREFARBEERREHREZ IR -
initiatives and the strategic development of the organisation as a whole.

Back (from left) & (Z£#2) : Mr Benjamin Rhys, Head of Inspection, Ms Wincey Lam, Head of Investigation and Compliance and Head of Finance and
Administration, Ms Florence Wong, Deputy CEO and Head of Oversight, Policy and Governance, Mr Alfred Chan, General Counsel and Ms Daisy Kwok,
Deputy Head of Discipline

EEPBEEFHEE  BEXIMPHRITBDBEEMNEELL - ATRARREE  BRREAPDETIERLL - @XEERRSELE RLEED HEIE
EitELt

Front (81): Mr Marek Grabowski, CEO 1TB#5 f h %o+
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Practice of Corporate Governance

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.

The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to
personnel administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and
the safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Board members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct for Board Members

A Code of Conduct for Board Members has been developed and approved
by the Board in the period. All Board Members are required to adhere to the
code of conduct.

This Code of Conduct sets out the basic standard of conduct expected of all
Board Members and the FRC’s policy on matters such as the acceptance
of advantages, declarations of conflicts of interest, confidentiality of
information, misuse of information and use of public funds by Board
Members in connection with their official duties.

Code of Conduct for Staff Members

The Code of Conduct for Staff Members has been revised in the period to
bring it in line with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and the latest
ICAC sample codes, and explains relevant matters in greater detail, in
particular in relation to acceptance of advantages by staff members.

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their
own and their spouses’ investments in listed securities, and to notify any
changes in their portfolio.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ##& &8
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ##& &8

Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC proactively communicates with stakeholders, the accounting and
auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts, and the general investing
public.

Periodic regulatory reports, press releases and e-newsletters are published
to keep the public informed about key regulatory issues, the progress of
our work and our latest developments. Operations statistics in relation
to the investigation function are regularly posted on the FRC website
(www.frc.org.hk).

The FRC has also set up pages on certain social media channels to enable
interested parties to connect with the FRC in a more interactive manner.

Accountability and Audit

The FRC is subject to a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Board. The Financial Secretary then reviews and
approves the FRC’s annual budget.

The financial statements of the FRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Financial Secretary
and tabled at the Legislative Council. The FRC attends a meeting of the
Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs to present the annual budget.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines.
The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review,
together with suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the
PRP are approved by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The FRC is subject to indirect oversight by the Office of the Ombudsman
which has statutory powers to investigate alleged acts of maladministration.
The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the Ombudsman during the
reporting period.
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OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL REVIEW
EERME R

Highlights BE
Key figures for 2019-2021 2019 Z2021F T EEIE
Inspection Investigation and enquiry
B AEREM

18

listed entity auditor firms inspected
BER18K LB R BN E/FT

67

pursuable complaints and referrals received

6T R Al BRAERGR M

38

listed entity audit engagements inspected
EE38ME L ERBEIAR

74

financial statements reviewed under the Financial
Statements Review Programme

RIBE IR R I FBAT4M T IREK

2

narrow-focus inspections initiated
RFA2RETHMER

23

investigations initiated
EF23EAEEZR

Oversight, Policy and Governance
EE  BERNEAR

7

investigations completed
TR TERE [EZE

1st

assessment of the performance of the specified
functions of the HKICPA completed
SR R E R BT A TR AL 0T

2

enquiries initiated
REF2EE A EZ

overseas auditors completed
SER 2B B EAGEE S ETTRINE B8R HIE IMZ BIAD
B A R R

1st

2 Corporate
cycles of review of applications for recognition of .I/J:\ %

50

staff members as at 31 March 2021
504 8 T (202143 A8318)

research report of the Market for Listed Entity
Audits in Hong Kong published
TIEF1NEE LT ERETTSHARRE

$119 milionm =

total expenditure in the 18 months ended 31
March 2021
1.19B A H (B E2021F3A318 L18fE A )

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R
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OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL REVIEW &3& & 81 7% Bl E8

The following tables highlight our work during 2019-21. More details are ~ TZ&R#ZIHFI702019-21 F BN TIERE - B2
provided in subsequent sections. BREBEE IR o

Inspection &%

Policies Developed comprehensive operating policies and methodology to conduct inspections of listed
BUR entity auditors and listed entity engagements.

HIERHAEERR K IDEAY LB REEE R LM ERERETER -

Guideline Gazettal and issuance of a guideline to all Hong Kong registered PIE auditors and Mainland
&5l auditors recognised under section 20ZT of the FRCO, which requires them to notify us of each
change in their appointments as auditor of a listed entity.

F'J”§’ﬂ§lﬁﬁﬁﬁ%/%u$ﬂﬂ®%$

i B BB AZBIED AR B AT EE S B 1601 )35 20Z TR AR AT B b A% BREM
BIES] - RERS AN LT E RS

RENKAZE ARFIZ LB

Reports Issued our Interim Inspection Report in December 2020, which provided timely information
W and insights on our inspection findings to enable all listed entity auditors to take early action to
address the common deficiencies we had identified in their next cycle of audits.

Published our Annual Inspection report on 3 June 2021. It includes audit quality ratings for the
engagements inspected, the key drivers of those ratings, and common deficiencies identified in
firms’ systems of quality control.

R20205F12 A B MM P HERBERBPINERERIBMHEROEHN L RRE - £ME LT EEXEED
RS P EREV TR AR E T —tw &t PR IR H M85 0% Rk -

202156 ASE T FEEREME - AHAHMERERNETEENE  ZEFTRNI2RANE
TERTE R H RSP R0 E RRE

Investigation and Enquiry SAE R &5

Cross-boundary Obtained the first batch of the audit working papers located in the Mainland required to carry
cooperation out our investigations into possible auditing irregularities. This marks a critical milestone in our
BiRaE cooperation with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the PRC Ministry of Finance.

BSEHUR AR ET TEESR - BREAIREFAENSEA NETAETAE - RS R ETEY
BEEEHERREN —EERRRZ® -

Process Review The Process Review Panel (“PRP”) in their 2020 Annual Report concluded that we had handled
BFER the investigation and enquiry cases reviewed by the Panel in accordance with its internal
procedures.

FrEieZ B @R H2020F F i Ehismwm - RARMERBEANEFEEZZESE RNALEN
Ea—ul% °
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Discipline £ & E 2D

Policies and Developed a preliminary internal disciplinary procedural manual, which sets out our policies and
Procedures detailed internal procedures in processing disciplinary cases.
BRRERF

SIS REDTEF T EPH#IHMRELRED FERNBERIFANEER -

‘

Oversight, Policy and Governance &8 - XK E#A

Policies Established policies and procedures that underpin the efficient and effective performance of our
BUR statutory functions.

IR REF AR R R A BRI TR E AL ©

Oversight Completed our first assessment of the performance of the specified functions of the HKICPA
EE and published a report outlining our findings and recommendations on 11 December 2020.

2020512 411 B R ME BB ST A A ST TIERREE R B A RHE L T RS A AR K52

=
zE29
Recognition Completed two cycles of review of applications from overseas entities listed in Hong Kong for
] recognition of their overseas auditors.

TR A HSES T RINE B R R IMX BB AV AT ER SE VR AL ©

Policy and Published the first edition of our “Overview of the Market for Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong”
Governance on 11 March 2021. The report sets out statistical information and our findings and insights about
BERRER competition features of the market and suggested avenues for further policy research.

#2013 8 11 BFIBEHIES EHERENDSERAE | - BERIERDSHB BN E
RARFRERRRR - LT T SREFRRE -
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Legal :#2

Governance Helped set up our new governance structure to cater for the expansion of our functions,
=) providing advice on the set-up of our new committees and their terms of reference, as well as
delegation of powers to Management.

BN 2 HT A E AR ARL A B MR EAREE - REMME S SR M EBEGERMEE - A
RAERERTES -

Developed a new Code of Conduct for our Board Members and a register of their interests.
Revised the Code of Conduct for our staff to ensure that our staff adhere to high ethical
standards in conducting our activities.

REMNEERKEFENTRTAREERERLM - BT EIMTATA - UERERMANETINT
Ef T BB RIRE -

Corporate ##&
Talent Development Engaged an external consultant to conduct a holistic review of our existing training, appraisal
ATEE and promotion policies and to revamp and develop a comprehensive set of related policies. We

expect to start implementing the new policies in the second quarter of 2021.

IESESNE BB RIFERA R - SEREAPRET2EERN - WERRGIE —ELRA R
% o JAMTAFT2021F 58 —FERIGEHHBECR °

Information Launched a Case Management System to automate the records and workflow management for
Technology our investigation and enquiry function.
ERH

HHEREERS  BRELEABENCHER TEREEEaSL -

Corporate Published 5 issues of our e-news bulletins and 32 press releases. Posted monthly operations
Communications statistics about complaints, investigations and enquiries on our website.
HEEA

BASHIE FRIMKI2MHIE AR - NEFINBU EAMARILH - AERERNS AE R 8IE -
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Introduction

This review covers the period of 18 months from 1 October 2019 to 31
March 2021 (review period). It addresses the development and performance
of our operating and corporate functions during the review period.

Inspection

What we do and why

Inspection is a key part of our market monitoring activities, which addresses
audit quality. Through our monitoring activities, we aim to educate the
market on our financial reporting and audit quality expectations, monitor
the quality delivered by listed entities and their auditors against those
expectations, and provide market feedback based on quality deficiencies
we identify to drive quality maintenance and improvement. We provide such
feedback through the follow up actions we take to require remediation or
deter recurrence of such deficiencies.

The performance of high quality audits and the maintenance of effective
audit quality control systems by listed entity auditors are crucial elements
of the listed entity financial reporting ecosystem and contribute to ensuring
Hong Kong remains a competitive international financial centre. Inspection
is a new statutory function under the amended FRCO. Our inspections
evaluate the quality of a selection of a listed entity auditor’s audits and
the effectiveness of the auditor’s quality control system. An inspection
evaluates the quality of the listed entity auditor's compliance with applicable
professional standards and legal and regulatory requirements.

Our progress and achievements

® 1/10 New powers of

Inspection effective ® Inspection fieldwork starts

10 B 1 B EREHER FInERESTHE
® 1/11 First staff join @ Fully staffed
1M A1 AEMETIA BT

g5

RREBRE2019F10 410 £2021F3 4315181
A(@EHRE) - B RERARDEAREEEER AT
AL BER LKA -

B

BN TERBERN
ERABRMMEERIBNER IR - AHEEHY
ERTEZETT - BARPIMESRED - HMI5EAT
SEERMUMBERNEAERNELE - ERERH
HIPER I M E BN AKBEE R - WRERFIFA
BRMERRARETSREAEDEREIT NN
# o BFEBRIMEETHRERE - ERUEHR
BRI EBEEE -

R EBEREEITRERNE ARES RN E
FHERERHE B LM ERMBERERE RS
REBE - WEBRRBEBERERSRT ONEF
71 o BE RIS T e BT E R B B DI T oy — IR
ETEREE - RPIMERE £ EEEN EHERZ
SRR E A R B B ERAN E R R B UL
ERME LT ERZHEETHEANERRENE
REREBRNER -

HFRER KRR

® Guideline on change in audit
appointment
BT EEFE RS

@ Interim Inspection Report
B R®RE

® Inspection Committee review
of inspection reports
EREEFEHERRE

® Operating procedures

@ Recruitment of additional

® Completion of inspection

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R

approved inspectors fieldwork
BERFEE HEELZERAR FTERERTIS T
® Auditors selected for © Inspection reports issued
inspection BHERBE
BEZHBAMER ©® Inspection Committee annual
® Briefing to auditors review
AR EEME TR EREZEGFEEMN
@ Monitoring database created ® Narrow focus inspections
EEHEEAR RSt E R
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On 11 December 2020, the FRC holds a press briefing to present the Interim Inspection Report and the Report on the FRC’s Assessment of the HKICPA’s

Performance of the Specified Functions.

202012311 A - MERBITHHEREG - NATHEERERARUEE R AN

As a new function, the initial work of Inspection focused on recruiting a
high-calibre team to conduct effective inspections. Two directors started
in November 2019, with the remaining budgeted headcount recruited to
provide a further 11 staff by the end of June. Two further inspectors were
recruited by end of September 2020 to provide broader industry experience
for engagements to be inspected.

Robust inspections play a key role in monitoring and improving the quality
of audits of listed entities, and therefore contribute to the protection of the
interests of the investors and the wider public. In the first quarter of 2020,
Inspection developed comprehensive operating policies, including our
inspection methodology, to conduct rigorous and consistent inspections
of auditors and listed entity engagements irrespective of the size and
complexity of a listed entity auditor or its audit engagements. In developing
these, we benchmarked them against those of other audit regulators based
in international financial centres.

We will have inspected listed entity auditors at least once during each three-
year inspection cycle, the first of which covers audits completed in the period
from 1 October 2019 to 31 December 2022. We will have inspected those
auditors with more than 100 listed entity audits each year. We selected both
listed entity auditors and their audits for inspection using approved risk-
based factors for our first year of inspection, covering audits completed up
to 31 December 2020 (2020 Inspection).
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Since the establishment of our Inspection function, we have been steadily
building comprehensive intelligence on listed entity auditors, individual
auditors and listed entities both from market sources and from listed entity
auditors selected for inspection. To provide us with accurate and timely
information on auditor appointments for the purposes of selecting firms and
engagements for inspection, we issued a Guideline to all Hong Kong and
Mainland listed entity auditors, which requires them to notify us of each
change in their appointments as auditor of a listed entity.

Our monitoring of such information both assists us in directing the focus of
our programmed inspections and enables us to respond quickly to identified
risks to audit quality. For example, in February and March 2021, we took
steps in real-time to initiate two narrow-focus inspections into suspected
non-compliance with professional standards. In one of these cases, we
are collaborating with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

As an accountable and transparent regulator, in December 2020 we issued
our Interim Inspection Report, which provided timely information and
insights on our inspection findings to enable all listed entity auditors (and
not just those being inspected) to take early action to address the common
deficiencies we had identified in their next cycle of audits.

The interim report also provided a reference source to alert audit committee
members to our key findings and the potential implications for their audits.
Audit committee members have a crucial governance role to play in
reviewing the quality of a listed entity’s financial reporting, in holding their
auditor to account for delivering a high quality audit and in managing the
listed entity’s relationship with its auditor. We urged audit committees to
challenge their auditors on whether they were taking the necessary steps to
address our findings.

During the first quarter of 2021, we completed our 2020 Inspection,
which includes determining the final results of our inspections of listed
entity auditors, including our audit quality ratings for the engagements
we inspected and the key drivers of those ratings, and issuing individual
reports to each of the listed entity auditors inspected. The final results of our
inspections and our responses to address the implications for audit quality,
were published in our Annual Inspection Report on 3 June.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R
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We will be taking appropriate actions in response to each of the listed entity
auditors inspected, and more broadly based on our overall findings, to
improve audit quality among the listed entity auditors we regulate. We have
required all inspected auditors to perform an analysis of the root causes of
the deficiencies we identified and will monitor a remediation plan agreed
with them. Where we have identified that improvements in audit quality are
required, we may require the auditor to take specific actions or re-inspect
them and, for significant audit quality failings, we will be taking enforcement
action.

BHABHEEERNE LM ERBRUMRIEE T
- WRBHMINBRERRIEREZNITE - IR
BHMAMEE EMERZBEINETER - NS E
KA EERNZBEE R FIMEIBENRARE
EITOM - WA BT BRI S 1 BRI 8 o
BRFEUCEEN LR B g BREHBERRE
BITYREHEURBZETER  RBRFAERRE
& » RPFERIRABHITTE o

We have also shared and discussed our inspection findings and observations
with the Oversight, Policy and Governance function where a policy response
may be required to address common audit quality matters.
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Our operational performance KM EERR
Listed entity Firms
auditors in inspected Engagements
Number of audit clients Hong Kong in 2020 inspected
BELE® #2020
ErEFNEE ERREm ERNEBR EERMNIER
More than 100 #8100 6 6 23
Between 10 and 100 1021002 13 4 8
Less than 10 M0 24 8 7*
43 18 38
Narrow-focus inspections initiated 7T 1S 2

* the only engagement of one firm was the subject of an investigation and our * Hbh—MEBEAME—EER ARAETNER - AR
inspection was limited to the firm’s quality control system PINERZRRZEBINE =ITH R4

Despite the challenges raised by COVID-19, in the first year of our three-  (EEHATIRB SRS, - R FBEEAMINE—
year inspection cycle we conducted inspections of 18 of the 43 registered 4 - B {FIE EH43EA T £ F & BRI E18(F
listed entity auditors in Hong Kong and 38 of their engagements. The  NiEZER)38(EIE B HITER - HH P —[#IEH B
inspection of one of the engagements has yet to be completed as work AT REA—ZRMANEEBIRTHREBE
relating to allegations into the conduct of the audit raised by a whistle-blower  z+&9353% T/E(IE#ETT ©

during the performance of the inspection is ongoing.
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Looking ahead

We published our Annual Inspection report on 3 June 2021. The report
addresses audit quality ratings for the engagements we inspected, the
key drivers of those ratings, and common deficiencies identified in firms’
systems of quality control. The report highlights that audit quality was far
below the standard that we expect of firms and, in addition to remediation
or enforcement actions against firms inspected, we are enhancing our
communication with, and monitoring of, all listed entity auditors.

The ability to effectively inspect working papers located in the Mainland
is of strategic importance to the FRC, and we have maintained regular
dialogue with the SEB to establish efficient operating protocols under
our Memorandum of Understanding to perform inspections of cross-
border engagements. Despite the changes in working arrangements and
restrictions on travel both to and within the Mainland caused by COVID-19,
significant progress in agreeing procedures for inspecting such workpapers
under relevant laws and regulations has been made with the support of the
SEB.

Through proper allocation of resources, Inspection will continue to conduct
high-quality inspections, increasing the number and size of the listed
entity engagements we inspect. We will also strengthen collaboration
and the sharing of information with local regulators to address and share
experiences on issues related to audit quality to uphold the standard of
financial reporting and protect the public interest. We will also pursue
inspection of auditors located in the Mainland and overseas jurisdictions as
we develop working protocols and agreements for inspections.
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Investigation and enquiry

What we do and why

The FRC has been vested with the powers of investigation and enquiry
since its establishment in December 2006. These are the regulatory
responses we need to deploy when our market surveillance activities
respectively detect possible non-compliance with accounting requirements
by listed entities in their financial reports or possible auditing misconduct by
auditors of listed entities (possible deficiencies). Our market surveillance
depends not only on our market monitoring activities but also on effective
processes that encourage other regulators, members of the public, our
regulatees and whistle-blowers to provide us with intelligence about such
possible deficiencies.

For investigation cases involving audits of listed entities completed on
or after 1 October 2019, our investigation findings will be referred to our
Disciplinary function where disciplinary action is required. Under transitional
arrangements in the amended FRCO, investigation cases involving audits
of listed entities completed before 1 October 2019 continue to be referred
to the HKICPA for consideration of disciplinary action. For enquiries cases
where we conclude that there is a non-compliance, we take action to have
the non-compliance removed.

Complaints and other sources of investigations and enquiries
The main sources of potential investigations and enquiries are:

(@) Complaints from members of the public;
(b) Whistle-blower complaints;
(c) Referrals from other regulators;

(d) Internal referrals of assessment reports from our monitoring of market
events;

(e) Internal referrals of Inspection reports; and

(f) Internal referrals of assessment reports from our Financial Statements
Review Programme (FSRP).
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We provide a platform for members of the public, our regulatees and
whistle-blowers to make complaints or provide information about possible
deficiencies they are aware of. Referrals from other regulators are made
through direct contact. Inspection report referral is a new source for audits
of listed entities completed on or after 1 October 2019.

We monitor market events that may indicate possible deficiencies,
through channels such as media reports, short-seller reports and market
announcements.

Our Financial Statements Review Programme is a non-statutory initiative,
which is the part of our market monitoring activities that proactively
addresses listed entity financial reporting quality. We select financial
statements of PIEs for review using approved risk-based criteria. These
selection criteria are reviewed regularly in response to changes in the
current economic and regulatory environment. We identify financial
statements for review by monitoring the published financial statements of
listed entities against our criteria and from our monitoring of market events.
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Our progress and achievements

@® APR4A
Completed 2 investigations
FER2RAE
@ APR4A
2019 Annual Report of PRP
issued
BFEREEGEM2019F
FiR
® JUNGA
Completed 1 investigation
TRARHAEE
® NOV 118 ® JUNGA
First request for MoF PRP review of operations
assistance with access to manual
Mainland working papers BFEnETEeSHSEFM
BIRER B BUED H B R
At TYEE AR

AMth 10-12

HANERRKR

@ NOV 113
Obtained first batch of the
audit working papers from
MoF
BB ES B LR A TR

R

@ DEC 1243
Fourth request for MoF
assistance

BRI BER 58

@ DEC 128
PRP review of cases
BrERZagesMiER

S = IRFE R BED B

During the review period, we have focused on enhancing our monitoring
of market events, collaboration with other regulators and the confidence
of whistle-blowers to report directly to us. As indicated in “our operational
performance” section, the number of complaints received from whistle-
blowers have increased in this review period.
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@ FEB 2R @ JUL7A Issued press releases

Second request for MoF New FRRP appointments BHMELOR

assistance R BERRNES

B IRFE R BUER # B) @ FEB2H

@ SEP9A Whistle-blower allegations

@® FEB 22 Briefing to FRRP 2P A HyEi

Completed 4 investigations B S E Fhig T Z= B B 1R IR

ERARAE @ FEB 27

Investigation into audits of a

@ MAR 3H listed company

Third request for MoF H EFEEETANRAT

assistance

® MAR 3A
Investigation and enquiry in
relation to a listed company

HEmEROREEEES
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We have also increased public transparency of our work where appropriate
to support market understanding of our expectations and confidence that we
will act on information received, in particular for cases with significant public
interest.

During the review period, there were staff vacancies due to internal
transfer to new functions. With a similar level of complaints received and
investigations initiated, only seven investigations were completed during the
review period and a backlog of cases has developed. Therefore, we have
taken opportunities to enhance the efficiency of our processes in order to
enable us to address the backlog of investigation cases whilst enhancing
our ability to respond with agility to new significant public interest cases.
For example, we are paying greater attention to the appropriateness of the
time given to regulatees and other parties to provide information, attend
interviews or review the findings of our investigations and enquiries.

In May 2019, a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the PRC
Ministry of Finance (MOF) was signed marking a critical milestone in the
cooperation between the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB) of the
MOF and the FRC. Under the MoU, we made requests for the assistance of
the SEB in gaining access to audit working papers for 12 investigation cases
during the review period. With the assistance of the SEB, the audit working
papers for seven of these cases were received in November 2020, despite
all the practical challenges brought about by the pandemic situation during
the review period. We have given priority to these seven cases and expect
to start completing them in the coming months and through early 2022. A
strong foundation has been laid to build a strategic relationship between the
SEB and the FRC.

Our Process Review Panel (PRP), established by the HKSAR Government,
scrutinises our work to ensure that individual cases have been dealt with in
line with internal procedures and guidelines. The 2019 Annual Report of the
PRP issued in April 2020 covers the review of six of the 137 cases handled
by the FRC in 2018. The PRP concluded that the FRC had handled the
cases in accordance with its internal procedures.
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In 2020, due to the expanded role of the FRC under the new auditor
regulatory regime, the terms of reference of the PRP have also been
expanded to cover the new regulatory functions of the FRC. In June 2020,
the PRP conducted a review of the procedural manuals for the regulatory
functions of (i) enquiry and investigation, (ii) inspection, and (iii) recognition
of overseas PIE auditors, under the new regime. The PRP were satisfied
with the new manuals.

In December 2020, the PRP selected and reviewed a number of tasks
handled by the FRC in 2019. Their review included seven of the 91 cases of
investigations and enquiries, three of the 78 applications for recognition of
overseas PIE auditors and a complaint against a former staff member. While
the PRP concluded that the FRC had handled the cases and applications
in accordance with its internal procedures, they recommended the FRC to
continue its efforts in expediting the handling of investigation cases in a bid
to clearing the existing backlog; to continue exploring ways to expedite the
processing of recognition application, and to review the internal practice for
processing incoming letters. The PRP also gave advice on improving the
presentation of case materials so as to facilitate more efficient preparation
for case review sessions in the future.

Our operational performance

The introduction of the new auditor regulatory regime resulted in the FRC
changing its financial year end to 30 September 2019, when the old regime
ended, and to 31 March for subsequent years. As a result, we had a short
financial year of nine months to 30 September 2019 followed by a long
financial year for the 18 month review period. Operational statistics for
Investigations and Enquiries (cases) and for the complaints and referrals
from which they have been sourced (sources) are provided below for the
review period, with comparatives for the previous nine month financial
period.
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2019-21 2019

(18 months) (9 months)

Key operational statistics for the review period o] B8 BRI M A BB VEBUR 2019-21F(1818A) 20194 (9fE A)
Pursuable complaints and referrals received PR AT BRAE AR S 67 48
No. of financial statements selected for review BIERMNTBImEKEE 62 47
Investigations initiated EFATHEZR 23 11
Investigations completed FTERGRE R ER 7 12
Enquiries initiated BREAEHNEZR 2 1
Enquiries completed TR ENBER - 3

Complaints and referrals

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining the
appropriate action to be taken, i.e. to close it, refer it to another function,
refer it to other regulators or initiate an investigation or enquiry. During
the review period, we received a total of 77 complaints, of which 67
were pursuable, and the remaining 10 were outside the remit of the
FRC, i.e. not involving auditing misconduct committed by auditors or
reporting accountants of listed entities or non-compliance with accounting
requirements in the financial reports of listed entities.

Including 25 referrals from other regulators, we received a total of 67
pursuable complaints and referrals (including 18 complaints from whistle-
blowers), the sources of which were as follows:

RF KRBT

ARZEREMPIRENSRRF - DORER TR
EETE  WERZERF  SEENEHMRAER
Pl BHENZHMEERBARMABATHEA - 1
CIEEAR - BAREKET7TRRSF - EPETRAN
R - B TT0ORTBERARBRE #E (B sy -
M E B BN S EIE KRBT RN AR
EHERYBHRENGIREER)

BEAMEERBENNBRERERN - RFIHE
KT R A RAERF R E N (BIEREEHREN18RE
) BRIRAT

2019-21 2019
(18 months) (9 months)
2019-214 20194
(188 A) CIEDED

Complaints from: wERRE
Members of the public N YN 24 30
Whistle-blowers Bk 18 4

Referrals from: ENE

HKEX P 12 10
HKICPA BRI 4 3
SFC BEE 5 1
CccB FEFERFER 4 -
Total #aEt 67 48
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Common areas of non-compliance with accounting requirements alleged
under the pursuable complaints received are in relation to financial
instruments, impairment of assets, fair value measurement and revenue
recognition; and the common areas of possible auditing misconduct are in
relation to sufficiency of appropriate audit evidence, auditing of accounting
estimates and exercise of professional scepticism.

There has been an increase in pursuable complaints from whistle-blowers
during the review period. Whistle-blowers raised concerns about possible
auditing misconduct or non-compliance with accounting requirements and
often provide undisclosed insider information to enable us to further pursue
the complaints. The FRCO (section 52) provides statutory protection for the
whistle-blowers, including confidentiality of their identity.

We handled 90 complaints and referrals during the review period including
23 brought forward from the previous period and the 67 pursuable
complaints and referrals received during the year. As at 31 March 2021, 29
complaints and referrals were still being evaluated.
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Ri& - BREESDRE -

27150 B R A A SR 0RIRSR R 497) - KR 723
FH E— BRI R U RETRAA R IR
R T - R20214F3 4310 - ARIIFEER29
RIFREN -

2019-21 2019

2019-214 20194

Brought forward Hi F BB R AR 23 11

Pursuable complaints received BERER A RERF 67 48
Completed with no follow-up action BEERMERZRENER (42) (29)
Referred to specified enforcement agencies B TRERITHEREZR = (1)
Initiated investigation or enquiry EFATREANER (19) (6)

In progress at end of the period BRINEERPOER 29 23
Pursuable complaints are completed with no follow-up action when there  RIERFIHIRAEHNER @ B X BB EAISNE

are no circumstances identified that suggested that an auditing misconduct
or non-compliance with accounting requirements had occurred based on our
review of the information available.
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In the past, we have conducted informal inquiries in relation to complaints
prior to determining whether to initiate an investigation or an enquiry.
During the informal inquiry stage, we obtained information from the relevant
parties, including listed entities and their auditors, to enable us to decide
on the initiation and scope of investigation or enquiry. The time taken to
complete the review of the information received at the informal inquiry stage
is dependent on the complexity of the case or the volume of information
received, which might delay the timing in initiating an investigation or
enquiry. In order to avoid such delays and enhance the efficiency of our
process, we are taking earlier advantage of our statutory powers under the
FRCO to initiate an investigation or enquiry, rather than first conducting
informal inquiries.

BE - BPRRERERMABSREMAIRFET
FIEREH - RIFEAEAEE - RAAMEREST
(B LETEREREZEM)ESER - ERFIRE
EABEAEAALFERERANHBE - RIFERE
AREER - EAREBFIREE R TR ENRRERFEZ
EEME R IREE RN EME - TS ERRER
HEXEANRE - Rl EHIERIIRSEF
o RMERT M AU E R RGO TR AIEE
ERNEFAEHEM - MIFERETIFEREH

126~

Members of the public
NN

Regulators

EERE

Listed entities
EmEeE

|
|
| |
2016 2017 2018  Sept2019 2019-21
20164 20174 20184 2019994 2019-214F
* Of these pursuable complaints received, 97 cases for 2016, 101 cases for 2017 and

50 cases for 2018, appear to have come from the same source and are directed at a
single audit firm in Category A (as defined below).
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Category of listed entity auditor involved in complaints and referrals B AR A ) T B RS AR B AE R

Category A firms (with >100 PIE clients)
HERIASERITT (B0 AR HEBES)

[ Category B firms (with 10 to 100 PIE clients)
FERIBEETEITT (1021008 AR EEEF)

B Category C firms (with less than 10 PIE clients)
BRICE AT (DIMOBR AR REEER)

2016 2017 2018  Sept2019 2019-21
2016%F 20174F 20184 201949H 2019-214F

(Note 1: A complaint or referral may involve more than one auditor) (Hfat1 - —FIRF LB A RE W R 2R — S 12 2LAD)

* Of these pursuable complaints received, 97 cases for 2016, 101 cases for 2017 and ~ * RZSERO T RERFP - R20165F - 2017F Kk

50 cases for 2018, appear to have come from the same source and are directed at a 2018 F D R EI7TR  1015R M50REZRFEN K AR
single audit firm in Category A (as defined above). — ORI EERACGEE R F3ONE—fA&5HR1T
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Financial statements selected for review under FSRP
During the review period, the criteria that drove our selections of financial
statements for review under our FSRP were as follows:

Selection criteria

B 75 1o R

HEIRAE

2020 cycle

20204 @1

RBA BB % EF L B EETER R B *E
REREHRE - HARIBEM SRR EH B S 155
FAETEMNRENT

Significant changes — Companies undertaking
significant changes in business activities
or having significant changes in business
activities, financial positions and results

Market events — Financial statements with
alleged non-compliance with accounting
requirements and/or auditing irregularities
based on media reports/companies subject
to intervention by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (e.g. to require the
appointment of forensic accountant)/long
suspended companies other than shells —
identified through our monitoring of market
events

Prior year adjustments — Financial statements
with significant prior period adjustments other
than those reflecting a change in accounting
policy or resulting from an adoption of newly
introduced financial reporting standards

Modified auditor’s report — Financial statements
with modified auditor’s report where there
are indications of auditing irregularities in
prior year’s audit

Delayed results — Delay of results
announcement due to COVID-19

Chinese Accounting Standards — Companies
using Chinese Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises to prepare their
financial statements

Complex valuations — Companies having
significant assets which are subject to
complex valuations

Complex fund raising — Companies raising
funds through issuing complex financial
instruments; and

M&A activity — Companies involved in major
acquisitions or disposals during the year
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FHEBRE - PRI KE
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MSEM — BN ERREENH
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BB HRBATETR
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HEEEN AT
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2019-21 Sept-19

2019-214 1949 A

In progress at the beginning of the period HMyIEHPHER 36 25
Financial statements selected during the period ~ HIRHE B % 5R% 62 47
Completed with no follow-up action B mER ZRENER (61) (33)
Pursued further to informal inquiry HE— P IREIFIE S (13) (3)
In progress at the end of the period RINEER PO ER 24 36

Four investigations (Sept-19: 5) were initiated from the FSRP reviews during
the review period.

REEEERRE - RIEMEREEMSEENEMTNRA
EEZR(9F9A : 57) °

Investigations HE
2019-21 Sept-19
2019-214 1999 A
In progress at the beginning of the period HyFAEPHER 42 43
Initiated in the period HARAFEHEZR 23 11
Handled during the period HAN R IR A 2R 65 54
Completed B (7) (12)
In progress at end of the period HRINEFAEHOER 58 42

During the review period, we handled 42 investigations brought forward from
the previous period and 23 that we initiated during the reporting period. We
completed 7 investigations during the review period, all of which identified
auditing irregularities related to audits completed prior to 1 October 2019.
Accordingly, the investigation reports have been referred to the HKICPA
to consider disciplinary action. For one investigation initiated during the
review period, the case was subsequently closed during the period as the
allegations were not substantiated on further investigation.

Of the 58 investigations in progress at the end of the review period, 12
cases involve audit working papers located in the Mainland (of which audit
working papers of seven cases were received from MOF as mentioned
earlier).

Category of firms involved in investigations from 2016 to the end of the
review period

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R

REERRE - RFEREE - —SHHEERN2RAE
B2 A R AEFE HHI R FI 23 R A EZR o IR E
BB TRALER  ZSERSWERGTEE
201910 A1 HAISTA BRI BB T ETTR ©
At - AERECEN BB LM E - UEELER
BA1TE) - iEEHMRRAN —TASERMS &%
MEREBOCRBATE  FERAE—SHASTERE
B AR -

FERBESRERDERETH8RHAEEERES - 125

EZZ R ERR AT TR (AT Ar
BB BERE R R ERNET TIERR) ©

H20165F = DI EHMA S KRS &5 ah1T85)
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2016 2017 2018 Sept 2019 2019-21

20164F 20174 20184 2019997 2019-214

Category A firms FERIAG TR T 18 21 19 26 26
Category B firms FERIBERTAIT 12 14 19 12 22
Category C firms ERICERHANTT 7 5 5 4 10
37 40 43 42 58

Over the period since 2016, around half of our investigations involved audits
by Category A firms. However, there is no overall trend in the categories of
firms that are subject to our investigations.

During the review period, the HKICPA took regulatory actions in response
to 16 investigations, which we had completed and referred to them in earlier
years, as follows:

R E20165F AR - HAWA —FHREER
W RIERIAGEEIITRERT - A AERRMIHE
BV E AR TR AR A B

REBESE  EEasti AR MNEREFETK
WREEN W16 R AEERFMEETTE - 0T

2019-21 Sept-19

2019-214 194 9H

Resolution by agreements (RBA) iE7S 9 1
Disciplinary sanctions WEED 6 7
Settlement FNAE 1 -
16 8

For the nine cases under RBA and the one case under settlement, the
relevant parties were reprimanded, requested to pay an administrative
penalty and reimbursement of the costs of the FRC and the HKICPA. For
the six cases with disciplinary sanctions, the sanctions were the same as
those under RBA and settlement and in four cases the practising certificates
of the engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
were also ordered to be cancelled or not to be issued within two years.

Enquiries

In cases where we believe that there may be non-compliance with
accounting requirements by a PIE, we may initiate an enquiry, which may be
conducted either by our investigation staff or a Financial Reporting Review
Committee (FRRC). During the review period, we handled one enquiry
brought forward from previous period and two enquiries initiated during the
review period, all of which were ongoing at the end of the review period.

64 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21

HANRRRFRERE —=NRERTS - GBS
BREE - WASNITRETAREESBERBD K
TRGRRAENER - BARLERIERME -
B EpEBARMENERAR - BENRER
o EIAR AR ARETAR E2EHIER AT
HERHNEMNFA TS EENEEE -

=i

PR R —HARNE TR AT NELGERE -
AFMATRFAESA - MEAAEEHREE B B FER
R EE#ErT - REESRE - HEER L2
DESAN—REZR  ARREBESEERAEANH
RIEZE - REEHER - ZEEREDHEET

MEERD « 2019-21F 3}



OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL REVIEW & [ B 7 51 B

The enquiry brought forward from the previous period is being conducted by
an FRRC and is related to the accounting for various financial instruments
under IFRS 9 (first-time adoption) in the listed entity’s interim financial
statements. The enquiry is expected to be completed in 2021.

For the two enquiries initiated during the review period, one enquiry was
initiated in December 2019 and the other enquiry was initiated in March
2021. The first of these is being conducted by an FRRC and is related to
the measurement of forestry operating rights and standing timbers. The

RE—HEDESANERAMBHESRRIZES

T B EHE BT IPERRARIEERE SRS
ERIFOF (AR MR EEMTANETRES
B o ZEMEHN20219F5EK ©
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second is being conducted by the FRC staff, under delegated powers EEZRHFEEETT  BEEOHRAREEEHED -
from the Board, and relates to the potential understatement of outstanding
borrowings.
2019-21 Sept 2019

2019-214 201949 3
In progress at the beginning of the period BRyEHPHER 1 3
Initiated in the period HANBRAESMNER 2 1
Completed TERREMER - (3)
In progress at end of the period HRIDESHAHEZR 3 1
Looking ahead BE

We will publish our first Annual Investigation Report later this year. The
report aims to provide timely public disclosure of the findings arising from the
handling of complaints, investigations, enquiries and financial statements
review programme of the Investigation and Compliance function, and the
progress of our work. The report will also set out our directional observations
for auditors and listed entities to respond to these findings, and provide
insights that are relevant to audit committees in fulfilling their responsibilities
for the review of the listed entity’s financial information and in relation to the
relationship with the listed entity’s auditor.

We will continue to further enhance the efficiency of our processes in order
to enable us to address the backlog of investigation cases whilst enhancing
our ability to respond with agility to new significant public interest cases.

Given the significance of PIEs with operations in the Mainland to the capital
market in Hong Kong, we will build on the successful implementation of the
MoU to further strengthen the cross-boundary cooperation and collaboration
with the MoF.
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Oversight, Policy and Governance

To enhance our effectiveness as a regulator, we take a risk based
approach to our work. This enables us to focus our work where the risks
to our regulatory outcomes are greatest. We do so by understanding and
anticipating risks to the quality of financial reporting and auditing of listed
entities at the level of the overall system (system level risk) and taking pre-
emptive actions to address these risks. Our work in this area is referred to as
Oversight, Policy and Governance.

Oversight and Recognition

Our two statutory functions in this area are oversight of the performance
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) of
their functions of registration, and the setting of professional ethics and
audit related standards and requirements for continuing professional
development, for Hong Kong based listed entity auditors, and recognition
of non-Hong Kong based auditors of overseas entities listed in Hong Kong.

These functions are critical elements of the overall system for regulating
the auditors of listed entities. Oversight addresses the qualifications and
maintenance of professional competence of local auditors and the standards
of their conduct and performance of local listed entity auditors. Similarly,
recognition addresses the suitability of overseas listed entity auditors.
Information obtained from these functions provides inputs relating to these
matters for our risk assessments.

Policy and Governance

We also conduct research on policy issues relating to the quality of
financial reporting and auditing of listed entities. This includes obtaining and
analysing market information about listed entities, listed entity auditors and
local and international developments relating to professional standards for
financial reporting and auditing. Such information provides broader inputs
for our risk assessments. As a result of our risk assessments, we may take
action to modify our monitoring activities (inspection and FSRP). We also
may develop guidelines for the performance of key governance roles, in
particular the pivotal role played by audit committees, in the oversight of
financial reporting by listed entities and the performance of audits by listed
entity auditors.
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Our progress and achievements

@ RECOGNITION @ RECOGNITION

) )
Policy and procedures Operations manual
completed completed
ESERKEERMNIZ T BRIEFMEX
@ RECOGNITION @ OVERSIGHT

=) BE
First cycle completed

F—(EAMEK completed

Policy and procedures

BEKEERMNZ T

HIFRVER KR

@ POLICY AND
GOVERNANCE
BERRER
Market Report* published
on 11 March 2021
2021 63 A 11 B#M
HTI5IRE*

@ RECOGNITION
)
Second cycle completed
FE_(EBEHTK

@ OVERSIGHT

EE

Operations manual approved

BRIEFMD &L E

@ OVERSIGHT

* Report on Overview of the Market for Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong

Starting with the Head of Department and one Director in October 2019,
we have increased our OPG resources to ensure that this important work
receives increasing attention. Our budgeted headcount at the end of the
review period is 7, all but two of whom was in post. In addition to accounting
and auditing specialists, our team includes a policy analyst from a research
background.

During the review period, we established robust policies and procedures that
underpin the efficient and effective performance of our statutory functions.

Oversight

We completed our first assessment of the performance of the specified
functions of the HKICPA and a report outlining our findings and
recommendations was published on 11 December 2020. We take a holistic
approach to our assessment, which included an on-site assessment of the
performance of the specified functions. We considered not only the policies,
process and procedures established by the HKICPA and how they were
implemented in practice but also the effectiveness of the related governance
arrangements.
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We observed the relevant committee meetings and reviewed their minutes,
interviewed members of committees and staff members of the HKICPA and
reviewed periodic reports provided by the HKICPA on the performance of
the specified functions.

Based on the assessment findings, our key recommendations include
strengthening the HKICPA'’s policies and procedures for the appointment
and reappointment of members of committees responsible for the specified
functions and maintenance of the terms of reference of such committees
to ensure effective performance of the specified functions; enhancing the
competency of local PIE auditors through CPD requirements; and advancing
standard setting activities to seeking inputs from constituents and post-
implementation review.

We have maintained regular communication with HKICPA regarding its
follow-up actions addressing our recommendations and received a status
report in March 2021. The HKICPA is developing the skills and experience
criteria relating to the appointment and evaluation of committee members. It
has also revised its CPD standard to include the professional competence
requirement for audit engagement partners as recommended and
introduced new procedures to monitor changes to international standards.
Whilst the HKICPA is still working on some follow-up actions, we will review
the progress in the coming on-site assessments and where appropriate to
assess the effectiveness of these follow up actions.

Recognition

We completed two cycles of review of applications from overseas entities
listed in Hong Kong for recognition of their overseas auditors. This is a
substantive process, which includes evaluating whether the auditor has
the resources and capabilities to carry out the listed entity’s audit. As at 31
March 2021, we had recognized 24 overseas listed entity auditors. At the
same date, these recognized listed entity auditors were the auditors of 72
overseas entities listed in Hong Kong and two entities listing applicants in
overseas engaged these.

We recognized 11 Mainland auditors endorsed in accordance with the
Mutual Recognition Agreement as PIE auditors. As at 31 March 2021, these
recognized Mainland auditors were the auditors of 76 Mainland entities
listed in Hong Kong.
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Policy and Governance

We published the first edition of our “Overview of the Market for Listed Entity
Audits in Hong Kong” (Market Report) on 11 March 2021. The report sets
out statistical information and our findings and insights about competition
features of the market and suggested avenues for further policy research.
This analysis will also enable us to enhance our regulatory risk assessments
and provide a foundation for our future policy development. We shared the
report with key member representative bodies for professional accountants,
auditors, directors and investors and with the support of these bodies or
organisations we broadcast the report to more than 100,000 stakeholders.
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Guerview of the Market for Listed Eniity Audits in
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-

published on 11 March 2021
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Report on Overview of the Market
for Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong

20213 1M BE#MNE B L ERE

The Market Report reveals that the market for listed entity audits in Hong
Kong (Market) was highly concentrated from 2010 to 2019, whether
measured by market capitalization or audit fees. There were 72 audit firms
that performed listed entity audits in the Market in 2019 of which 41 local
(Hong Kong) PIE auditors performed the audits of 95% of the 2,328 listed
entities. The largest local PIE auditor accounted for 18% (by number), 51%
(by market capitalization) and 32% (by audit fees) of the Market. There is
no clear trend in the switching rates during the period as the percentage
by number of listed entities that changed auditor in each year from 2011 to
2019 was between 6.6% and 9.6%. Audit fees were decreased or stayed
the same in a higher proportion of cases and the decrease in fees averaged
25%. The ratio of non-audit to audit services provided by PIE auditors to
listed entities they audit is broadly comparable with or lower than in other
international capital markets.
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To better understand the competition features of the Market identified and
whether they pose threats to audit quality, the FRC will conduct further
research to understand the factors giving rise to the higher concentration
observed for listed entity audits; and also the factors driving relatively static
overall pricing of audits in the Market and the observed changes in pricing
when there are changes in auditor. We will also understand the nature of
non-audit services, and whether there are implications for competition,
auditor independence and audit quality of such services, performed by
auditors for the listed entities they audit.

Our operational performance

We observed the meetings of the HKICPA committees responsible for
the specified functions (i.e. the Registration and Practicing Committee for
registration of PIE auditors; the Ethics Committee for setting standards on
professional ethics and continuing professional development requirements;
and the Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee for setting
standards on auditing and assurance practices). We also reviewed the
HKICPA'’s quarterly activity reports which include the statistics of CPAs,
CPAs (Practising), PIE auditors and registered responsible persons for
PIE engagements; international standard setting events attended by
HKICPA representatives; new or revised PIE standards; and CPD courses
offered. These procedures enabled us to keep informed of the HKICPA’s
performance continuously and ensured prompt actions could be taken
where needed.
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We have developed policies and procedures for recognition of overseas
auditors to ensure that applications are processed timely and decisions
made are fair and consistent. We generally inform the applicant of our
decision on the application by written notice within 30 business days
from the date when we are satisfied that no supplementary information
is required. If this is a renewal application, the decision is shorten to 20
business days from the date when no supplementary information is required.
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Number of applications reviewed
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Renewal applications
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As at 31 March 2021
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Recognized PIE auditors
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Looking ahead

We are planning for our second assessment of the HKICPA'’s performance
of the specified functions. This will include reviewing the HKICPA'’s progress
of implementing follow-up actions in response to the first assessment
and the HKICPA's internal controls over the performance of the specified
functions.

We are also committed to identifying measures to further expedite our
processing of application for recognition of overseas auditors, including
streamlining certain operational procedures and further enhancing the
application forms for submission of information.

We have also begun further work on policy and governance research to
enable us to support our broader objectives in influencing and shaping
the behaviours of our regulatees and other stakeholders to support our
regulatory objectives. We intend to publish further editions of “Overview of
the Market for Listed Entity Audits in Hong Kong” annually and to further
develop their scope. We have also begun preparing guidelines relating
to the role audit committees should play, in fulfilling their responsibility for
managing the listed entity’s relationship with its auditor, to hold their auditors
to account for delivering a high quality audit. This will draw their attention to
matters on which they may be able to challenge their auditors.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

=35
BAEEBEE TGRS EITIERBERIE
TE RS - B pREHEE g AgRE —
REHERBURETHNERBARBEEMASY
TR BB R BRI -

BAINE B — 5 IR SR S M B 3
M - RERTETEFRFRE SR ERRE
OSBRI -

BB — FRRBEME AR IE - E
BPERTIHAEF EREETRE AL REMIFHE
IRTHENEREZBR HMXSEEBRR - 1M
AEEERMEZRANBE LTERBET DS
M WE—SEAEBE - RATEFBEHESRH
ERZERERITAEIE FHEREEZ AR
BEREAEARNES  LEREZBE S REE
AEFER - HBESEERRZEB ST H A REE %
iupad: S

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21 71



OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL REVIEW %3 [ B 75 51 B8

Discipline

What we do and why

Discipline is a new function under the amended FRCO. We have been
preparing for the commencement of our disciplinary operations, which is
expected to be later than for other new functions. It will be considering
whether the evidence obtained from our investigation and inspection
functions warrants disciplinary action and if so developing recommendations
for proportionate sanctioning. When fully functional, it will play an important
role on that part of the spectrum of our regulatory powers that focuses on
deterring misconduct by listed entity auditors.
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Our first disciplinary lawyer was on board in December 2019 to start
designing and developing an efficient and effective disciplinary workflow.
This work has involved benchmarking against the disciplinary procedures
of local financial regulators and independent auditor regulators in other
international financial centres that operate similar enforcement regimes.
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A process that is timely and efficient may reduce the time commitment and
costs of regulatees subject to disciplinary actions and at the same time
serve the public interest by delivering disciplinary outcomes expeditiously so
that their deterrent impact is likely to be more salient and effective.

To ensure consistency and fairness, we have also been developing an
internal disciplinary procedural manual, which sets out our detailed internal
procedures and the relevant case law and legal developments.

We are building our own disciplinary database and intelligence on listed
entity auditors and their registered responsible persons. The disciplinary
team is also conducting research into relevant disciplinary cases in Hong
Kong and other international financial centres, so that we will be better
equipped to handle cases under the new regime.

It will be important and beneficial for the regulatees to understand and
have easy access to information in relation our disciplinary processes.
We are therefore striving to prepare and publish clear, simple and easy to
understand disciplinary procedures and guidance notes for regulatees on
matters such as cooperating with us.

As we anticipate that the inflow of the first cases to Discipline may be by
the end of the current financial year, we are progressively building our
disciplinary team. By 31 March 2021, we have 3 disciplinary lawyers on
board and anticipate that the remainder of the initial team of six will be on
board by the end of July 2021.

Looking ahead

We will continue to build our resources and fine tune our procedures to
ensure that we are well prepared to carry out our disciplinary activities
efficiently, fairly and effectively.
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Legal

What we do and why

As an independent auditor regulator, we must demonstrate that we act
impartially, transparently, and with integrity and proficiency. Legal advises
our Board on all of our legal and ethical related matters, covering not only all
of our regulatory functions but also our corporate governance arrangements
and our compliance with laws and regulations. Legal also acts as the Board
secretariat, responsible for all Board meetings where important strategic
decisions for the FRC are made.

Legal provides legal advice for the successful delivery of all of our regulatory
activities and initiatives. In many areas of our current regulatory work, such
as inspection, discipline and oversight of the HKICPA, we are breaking new
ground and crossing new frontiers in our daily operations. Our legal support
is vital to the achievement of our departmental objectives. At the same time,
Legal gives vital support to our Management in relation to our strategic
development as a whole.
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Progress and achievements

Despite having a small team of 3, including 2 legal professionals,
Legal has embraced the wide portfolio of duties that has come its way
during the review period with the expansion of our functions. In order
to provide the legal support that we need, Legal has had to acquire an
intimate understanding of our objectives at the organisation level and the
departmental level, the nature of the work involved or the functional activities
carried out, and the legal framework within which those needs, work, and
activities interact with one another.

To enable us to discharge our duties properly, a balance needs to be struck
between executive and operational effectiveness and efficiency on the one
hand, and comprehensive oversight by those in governance roles on the
other. Legal helped us set up our new governance structure to cater for
the expansion of our functions, providing advice on the set-up of our new
committees (as part of our oversight activities) and their terms of reference,
as well as delegation of powers to Management. The new governance
structure, with the relevant powers delegated to Management and proper
oversight, seeks to achieve that balance.

Legal also developed a new Code of Conduct which we introduced for our
Board Members, as well as a register of interests of our Board Members.
Legal also revised the Code of Conduct for our staff to ensure that our staff
adhere to high ethical standards in conducting our activities. As a regulatory
body serving the public interest, we must maintain the highest standards
of behaviour. The codes of conduct are fundamental to promoting these
standards.

Looking ahead

Legal will continue to review our corporate polices and in the coming year
will also develop and introduce new whistle-blower policies and other
updated policies. After 18 months of operation under the new regulatory
regime, Legal will also be providing advice on the review of our governance
structure and related issues in anticipation of our emerging needs and
objectives.
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Corporate Functions

What we do and why

Our corporate functions manage the availability, quality, security and efficient
use of our key resources — our facilities, people, information technology and
financial resources — and enhance our stakeholder engagement through the
effective delivery of our corporate communications and events.

Our progress and achievements

Achieving the desired outcomes from our corporate functions depends
critically on successful establishment and implementation of appropriate
policies and procedures. With the growth and expansion of our functions,
our policies and procedures have been a key focus of our corporate
functions in the review period.

Facilities

To cater for our expanding operations, we moved to our new offices at
the Hopewell Centre on 2 December 2019. With an open layout, the new
office helps increase efficient use of space and staff communication.
Workstations with height-adjustable desks are provided to all staff members
in consideration of their health and productivity. The new office has also
been equipped with a new IT infrastructure and network to facilitate the
performance of our functions.

People

Our focus in significantly expanding our workforce to deal with our new and
ongoing functions has been on building an integrated high performance
team.

In May 2019, we engaged an external consultant to conduct a remuneration
and benefits structure study for us. Based on the recommendations of
the consultant, we have established and implemented a market-aligned
remuneration and pay structure and competency framework for our
people. We also aligned annual leave entitlements and staff benefits with
comparable positions in the market and added an annual health-check
subsidy benefit for all staff.

Our updated pay structure and competency framework serve as an objective
and measurable foundation for recruiting talented people for our new
functions and rewarding all of our staff fairly. Our competency framework
enables us to identify common training needs amongst our people and
supports their personal development planning.

To recruit, retain and develop talented people to achieve effective
regulatory outcomes, it is necessary for the updated pay structure and
staff competency framework to be integrated with our people development
system, through robust training, appraisal and promotion (TAP) policies
and procedures. We engaged an external consultant to provide a holistic
review of our existing TAP policies and to develop a comprehensive set
of revamped TAP policies. The project is ongoing and expected to be
completed in the second quarter of 2021.
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To enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of our human resources
function, we have also been working on a project to automate our people
management activities (including those relating to our revamped TAP
policies and procedures) through implementing a comprehensive Resources
Management System, which we plan to launch towards the end of 2021.

Information Technology

To enhance operational efficiency, we launched a Case Management
System in the first quarter of 2020 to automate the records and workflow
management for our investigations and enquiries.

We introduced a new document management system on our virtual private
network in the first quarter of 2021 to facilitate distribution, storage and
retrieval of documents for Board and Committee meetings, with a view to
achieving paperless meetings.

We also engaged an independent IT security consultant to conduct an IT
Security Study to assess the effectiveness of our IT security and address
any system vulnerabilities.

Financial Resources
We have developed new policies and procedures to enhance the efficiency
and effectiveness of our financial operations and safeguard our assets.

During the review period, our Procurement Manual was revamped to
incorporate the recommendations of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption in its study of our procurement function in 2019. Also in line
with those recommendations, developed new policies on Entertainment,
Sponsored Visits and Training and on Management Staff Taking up Public
Service.

Our Investment Policy was also revised after a holistic review of the policy
by Management. We now invest our reserve and unspent government grant
funds in time deposits of up to one year’'s maturity allocated across at least
5 approved banks, which must be licensed by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority and rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. At the end of the period,
we were still transitioning to the new policy with funds placed under the
previous policy held to maturity.

Corporate Communications

During the review period, our calendar has been marked by numerous
events and activities that enhanced communication and strengthened
relationship with local, Mainland and international stakeholders.
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Date HEHj Event
3-5 Dec 2019 Participation at the 2019 PCAOB International Institute on
2019512 A3%5H Audit Regulation “Repositioning Audit Regulation for the

Future”, Washington, DC, U.S.A

. Gaining insightful information on the future of auditor
oversight, audit quality risk, development and
challenges in cross-border regulation and challenges of
increasingly global audits

13 Dec 2019 Housewarming celebration

2019%12A13H o Celebrating the opening of the new office with the
graceful presence of officials from the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau, Board Members
and stakeholders

14-15 Jan 2020 Meeting with the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau (SEB)
202051 A14%£15H of the PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MOF), Beijing
. Discussing future cooperation in inspection with a
shared goal of enhancing audit quality

Jan-Feb 2020 Briefings on Inspection

2020F1 A =2A C Introducing the scope and process of inspection to
listed entity auditors
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Date A Event SEE
16, 18, 19 Mar 2020 Video conference with UK FRC LI I TS TE R BETTR R &
2020%3H16H - . Exchanging experiences in discharging regulatory - XRETEEBALALEH

18H - 19H functions
19 Mar 2020 Video conference with SEB of MOF BB ER®ITREEH
202093 519H +  Exploring collaboration opportunities in inspection and  « R ERLAEHTEHAEES

investigation

26 Mar 2020 Video conference with PCAOB HXR FMAR ST EBRZESHETHR
202043 A26H +  Exploring possible cooperation Ga®

« ReTATERABEM

4 May 2020 Briefing for Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs LA EBE B FERH
2020%F5H4H . Briefing panel members on work progress (from 1 Apr - RZE&/KEERTIFERE (2019
2019 to 31 Mar 2020) and work plan (1 Apr 2020 to 31 F4R18%E2020F3A31H) kT
Mar 2021) YEET2E1(20209F4 A1H £20214F
3A31H)
10 Sep 2020 Briefing and Reception for Financial Reporting Review Panel 8 & Rig st % 8 MM R L ERS
20209 A10H +  Briefing for new members and expressing gratitude to ~ «  A#Ak B {ERSRI BEIRER E

retired members

11 Sep 2020 Courtesy visit by Permanent Secretary for Financial Services B EB N EKREEWE RN TH
2020F9A11H and the Treasury A
. Introducing FRC'’s latest developments and challenges  «  N4AEHHIE NS EIER B S
we faced under the new regime R LRI PAEREPEL
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Date HHA
30 Nov 2020

2020511 H30H

11 Dec 2020

2020128118

7 Jan 2021
2021F187H

24 Feb 2021
202162 H24H

21 Mar 2021
202153 H21H

31 Mar 2021
202143 A31H

On-going
T

Publications

We communicate key regulatory issues and our latest developments with  F{
our stakeholders and the public via our publications. During the review
period, we published 5 issues of our e-news bulletins and 32 press releases.
Monthly operations statistics about complaints, investigations and enquiries

K B 75 1o e

Event
Video conference with SEB of MOF

Following up on collaboration opportunities in inspection
and investigation

Press briefing on first regulatory reports

Presenting the Interim Inspection Report and Report on
FRC’s Assessment of the HKICPA’s Performance of
the Specified Functions to the media

Introductory meeting with ICAC

Signing Ceremony for Memorandum of Understanding between
the FRC and the SFC

Fostering closer collaboration with the SFC in the
regulation of the securities and futures market.

Video conference with SEB of MOF

Continuing dialogue on collaboration opportunities in
inspection and investigation

Briefing for Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs

Briefing Panel Members on the Budget for 2021-2022

Regular meetings with regulators

Sharing on common issues and fostering close
collaboration with SFC, HKEX, HKICPA and ICAC

HIRTIY
P IB I PIE E AR T B 10 %
BB N EAER - REESRE - HAI%6 THE
FRIEA K32 HE A o FAPIHVAIE IR TSR 2 B
i B B

covering the review period were also published on our website.
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Topics covered by E-news

BFMAEENEE

Feb 2020
202042 A

May 2020
2020457

Aug 2020
202058 A

Dec 2020
202012 H

Mar 2021
202143 3
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Key audit and accounting issues to auditors,
listed companies and audit committees to
promote audit quality and corporate governance
amidst COVID-19

FRC'’s plan in 2020

International connection

Operations review

Salient issues and advice in relation to
maintaining audit quality and audit independence
at the challenging time of COVID-19

Matters that directors, audit committees and
auditors should note in order to maintain audit
quality and audit independence

Interviews of Heads of Departments

Summer Internship Programme

Welcome Message from the new CEO including
regulatory approach, status of work and press
briefing of the two regulatory reports

Effective cross-boundary collaboration with
the Supervision and Evaluation Bureau of the
PRC’s Ministry of Finance

Interviews with retired Board Members

Progress made in fulfilling the regulatory
objectives across different functions
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Our Financial Performance KR RA

Our Expenditure el o

Our total expenditure for the review period was $118.8 million. Staff related R EEHRE - HMNESTH A1.188ETT - B TIEH
costs amounted to $84.9 million, representing 71% of our total expenditure.  F{ 7~ 58,4908 7T « (h & M2 % HET71% B iEIEE
Facilities related expenses were $18.5 million, representing 16% of our total % /51,8508 7T (5B & H#16% - HibE E
expenditure. Other major expenditure included non-executive directors’ fees St B IEIERITEERLET0ETTIARIERT S ~ &
of $5.7 million and project expenses of $1.7 million for the revamp of our  #ZREABFEHER X H1708 7T -

TAP policies.

Expenditure
X
(HK$ million)
(B&#T)

Insurance and other staff expenses
R R HAME T

Staff recruitment expenses
BEEIXE

MPF contribution

R ATESHR

Salaries, variable pay and bonuses
BB - F BRI R IEAL

[ Staff related costs [ Facilities related expenses
8 TR BieiiE

I Non-executive directors' fees Depreciation and amortisation
FMITEFES Hree R

[l Other operating expenses [ Project expenses
Hithigi@ i HE X H

Bl Legal and professional fees [ Corporate communications expenses
FEENEERER MR ER S
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Our Income 2 (S1ECLON

Our total income for the review period was $118.8 million, comprising grant R EIEEEAR - HFIHLQW A E1.188E T - BIEEH
income of $108.0 million, which has been recognised to match our total ~ IZ A1.080187C © HE TR - UIEREKRFARIERE
expenditure after deducting our interest on term deposits of $9.2 million,  HA7FEUK| 89208 7T R H MW A 1608 T (FH:EE A K&
and other income of $1.6 million (application fees and recovery of costs of &AL AULE])EHILESTH -

investigations).

Income
PN
(HK$ million)
(B&%ET)

M Grantincome
BB

I Interest income
ISUON

[l Recovery of costs of investigations
and Application fee income

B AU E K BB E AU A

Financial position B AROR,

Our total assets were $385.6 million at 31 March 2021, including $331.5 2021438310 » RN EELA(E/53.856E T -
million held in cash and bank time deposits. Our right-of-use asset BFEFANIEE NETEHFR3.315E5T » HFIH
represents the current value we agreed to pay for the use of our premises, (FAEEERRPIRILAERREREDYES(N
when we entered into our lease. The property, plant and equipment of  HIR{E - 1,150 T % « RELBHMEB AL
$11.5 million is principally office fit-out costs, office furniture and IT and ZEEEZE - PRAEEAEUREAR LB ERE - &
communications equipment. The intangible asset is the cost of the IT FEEAAECLERNEAREERGAENBEEMG
software for our Investigations and Enquiry case management system. HIRRA o
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Our total liabilities were at $336.8 million at 31 March 2021. The difference 7202143 A31H * HfIH & E4EE 53.368(27T °
between our total assets and total liabilities is reflected in the General fund EEAEHEBEREMNEZEN —ME S H4,8808
balance of $48.8 million. Of our total liabilities, the deferred income of $290.9  JTAXME - REBEREF @ FELEUKA2.909FTTHER
million represents the unspent balance of our Government Grant of $400.0 201958 AR EI MR F & B4 BT R B 464 -
million received in August 2019. The lease and related liability of $39.7 & XBE & &3,970& ;B2 B B HAR R FK Mgt A8
million comprises the present value at the end of the review period of the  EBEMAFIHTEMIRER RN T LA ERHE
remaining amounts we owe for our lease liability and the current value when — PATE & RIFIE R TIZAANEYIR(E -

we entered into the lease of our estimated reinstatement costs at the end of

the lease.
Assets Liabilities and Reserves
BE BEREE
HKS$ mili (HK$ million)
(@i%n;%%) (BREL)

[ Bank deposits and cash B Deferred income
ROTFREE D iIALON
[ Right-of-use asset (office premises) [ | Geﬁ';‘?g'%f“”d
ERREE (%/E\E%%) [ ] Leése a;ﬁd related liability
[ Property, plant and equipment e =
ey, Pal e A RAE R
L EIIE VST Accounts payable, accruals & other liabilities
Deposits, receivables and prepayments EAEZ  ESERAREMERE

e YRR IERFUR
M Intangible asset

BIVEE
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Our People

Our people are our most indispensable resource. Charged with the mission
to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed entities in Hong Kong
to enhance investor protection and corporate reporting, we place strong
emphasis on recruiting the right people with the right expertise and mindset
to deliver effective outcomes and serve the public interest.

As a small organisation, our people strategy is designed to attract, inspire
and develop high calibre people with the right skill sets. We are dedicated
to building an inclusive and cohesive workforce where everyone supports
each other and learns from each other to achieve our mission. As a young
and growing organisation, our culture continues to evolve as we build teams
with talented people from diverse backgrounds but embracing the highest
standard of professionalism, a mindset of serving the public interest and
integrity always form the core.

BAWET
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T UERARELMRB AR -

TERm—E/ AR  HAIAT RIS ERS| - HE
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50% 50%

Years of experience in the FRC REIERBHNEE

> 10 years

105 A

> 510 10 years
SFUAEE105F

1to 5 years
1255

<1 year

1T

Number of staff & T A &
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During the review period, we recruited 29 new staff members. At 31 March
2021, we have 50 staff members, of whom, 14 are in Inspection, 15 in
Investigation and Enquiry, three in Discipline, five in Oversight, Policy and
Governance, 3 in Legal and 10 in other Corporate functions.

In support of the HKSAR Government’'s Job Creation Scheme under the
Anti-Epidemic Fund 2.0, we also created 10 one-year job placements
towards the end of the review period, covering a diverse range of job
functions and levels.

To cultivate the interest of university students in the accounting profession,
we launched the first Summer Internship Programme to provide university
students with an opportunity to better understand our operations. Six
interns worked in different operational departments on a rotation basis to
gain hands-on experience under the guidance of experienced department
supervisors during the six-week programme and also took part in a
group exercise. This was a highly successful initiative that cut across the
generations, allowing much to be learnt both by and from the interns, and is
one we are committed to repeating.

PEBEHRE - RFIRIE29EHE T - 1202143431
B RFBES0RET  EF4REEEE 1558
BENEMR  —RRALRRES  hRAEEE -
BELER ZRABERARI0R A E L AR
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BE °

RIXEEEFITHREBFRRAEZES2.0ET
EVBIER AT E] - FPITA B ER R R SL 1018 —4F
i - RET B TIEREE LR -

REBASEHEHEXENER  RAELEESY

BEE %ﬁﬁik (R o3l T AR R PIE (R
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The FRC Summer Internship Programme provides university students with an opportunity to better understand our operations.

EREMEERE - RABARMEM THRRMEFNKS -
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We consider employee engagement as a vital part of our strategy. In
September 2020, we conducted an employee survey to collect views about
personal development in the FRC with a response rate of 87%. The survey
provided us with valuable insights and allows us to focus our development
efforts in areas that matter most to our people. Building on this with ongoing
development feedback from our appraisal and counselling process, we can
achieve our strategy to create a high performance team.

We are committed to providing development opportunities to our people to
equip them with the necessary knowledge and skills to meet challenges. We
expect our own professional staff to have the strong professional judgment
and professional skepticism we expect of our regulatees. During the review
period, we offered 15 workshops and seminars to support the training and
personal development needs of our staff. Diverse topics were covered
including setting strategy, critical thinking, problem-solving, leadership
development, stress management, work-life balance, integrity management
and IT security awareness, as well as specialist technical briefings on
accounting and auditing.

Every expert
there
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mo' .
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The FRC offers workshops and seminars to support the training and personal development needs of our staff.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
B EERRE

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council
set out on pages 91 to 119, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the
period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021, and notes to the financial
statements, including significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 March 2021, and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the period from 1 October 2019
to 31 March 2021 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with section
18(2) of the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards.
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Financial Reporting Council in
accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the Financial
Reporting Council’s 2019-21 Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT B:tE22RHE

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting
Council for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the Financial Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council
is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance and Corporate
Affairs Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT Bt Z2Z2E )%

ERBEEEETEAETETNRRED  REER
BRHABITRFEXRREEE - R

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Financial Reporting Council;

conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial
Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Financial Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

Hildy Chan Audit Commission FEIEER FiE
Assistant Director of Audit 26th Floor EREAEYPRER i1
for Director of Audit Immigration Tower BRImEE AT HLITETH
7 Gloucester Road NIRETERIE2612
15 June 2021 Wanchai, Hong Kong 2021466 A15H
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mEWAK
2019410 818 202143 31 A HARS
(RFEABTTIIR)

Eighteen months Nine months
ended ended
31 March 30 September
Note 2021 2019
BZE HE
202138311 20199 A30H
B=E E+NEA LEAEA
Income 'ON
Annual contribution BERAES 4 - 33,985,556
Grant income BB A 5 108,007,390 1,083,099
Application fee income REERIRA 6 38,750 -
Recovery of costs of investigations FER AW 6 1,566,601 549,044
Interest income FLEUA 7 9,167,299 1,959,414
118,780,040 37,577,113
Expenditure T H
Staff costs BT 8,9 (84,897,221) (25,729,807)
Non-executive directors’ emoluments IETESINE 9 (5,700,000) -
Premises expenses L/ E s 10 (3,330,576) (228,964)
Corporate communications expenses & ES H 11 (676,518) (474,061)
Legal and professional fees EEREXEER (1,391,586) (565,971)
Project expenses HE X 12 (1,665,350) (1,869,000)
Interest on lease liability HEAENE 16 (2,780,517) (167,458)
Depreciation and amortisation PTEE Ky
— Property, plant and equipment —WE - BRERBM 15 (3,300,656) (214,781)
— Right-of-use asset —fPREEE 16 (12,354,156) (686,342)
— Intangible asset —EBEEE 17 (228,667) -
Other operating expenses Hib & ES H 13 (2,454,793) (813,562)
(118,780,040) (30,749,946)
Surplus and total comprehensive HRNBSHRR
income for the period BmEaWA - 6,827,167

The notes on pages 95 to 119 form part of these financial statements. F958 Z119E MM T AR Wz —35 °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #8353

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B R AR R =
As at 31 March 2021 R20214F3A31H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (£FLABTTIR)
31 March 30 September
Note 2021 2019
20214 20194
M5 3A31H 9H30H
Non-current assets nBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - B MEEM 15 11,470,032 2,590,578
Right-of-use asset FREEE 16 36,376,160 48,730,316
Intangible asset B EE 17 751,333 882,000
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 48,597,525 52,202,894
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments &% + JEUIR L IET 7RI 18 5,507,719 5,005,590
Time deposits with original maturities REIBIRZR=(EAK
over three months TE BT 19 313,000,000 330,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 20 18,497,172 113,169,429
Total current assets RBEEHLE 337,004,891 448,175,019
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable, accruals and other  JEfIERFR - JEETE A K
liabilities HBaE 21 (6,219,712) (3,810,768)
Deferred income EEUWA 5 (77,993,000) (81,302,000)
Lease liability HERE 16 (7,527,179) (5,536,908)
Total current liabilities nEBAERE (91,739,891) (90,649,676)
Net current assets REBEEFE 245,265,000 357,525,343
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred income SEIEUA 5 (212,916,511) (317,614,901)
Lease liability HEEE 16 (28,442,538) (39,609.860)
Provision for reinstatement cost EIR TIEp A BB 22 (3,690,000) (3,690,000)
Total non-current liabilities *r@pEEEE (245,049,049) (360,914,761)
Net assets BEEFHE 48,813,476 48,813,476
Funds =%
General fund —REE 23 48,813,476 48,813,476
Total funds mEs 48,813,476 48,813,476

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 15 June 2021 M2021566 15 B EE % RHE BRI T3

.

Mr Marek Grabowski 51564
Chief Executive Officer 7TIE#8%,

FEI5E ENMIB KM ERRTBIHRERN —&b7 -

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP ZEX#EL - KF@L
Chairman /5

The notes on pages 95 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS EBEK
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021 201910 818 £2021F3 A31H Hifd
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (SBABTIIR)
Note General fund Reserve fund Total funds
FaE —RES f#ES wEe
At 1 January 2019 720191818 21,986,309 20,000,000 41,986,309

Surplus and total comprehensive EiNZ & & 447 A A

income for the period 6,827,167 - 6,827,167
Transfer to general fund ERE—RED 23 20,000,000 (20,000,000) -
At 30 September 2019 7201969 7330H 48,813,476 - 48,813,476
At 1 October 2019 201910 H1H 48,813,476 - 48,813,476

Total comprehensive income for EiN4A4E A WA

the period - - -
At 31 March 2021 7A2021F3H31H 48,813,476 - 48,813,476
The notes on pages 95 to 119 form part of these financial statements. F958 2 119E A ST AR I WmFzA —3B 5 °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf %3k

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEnExR
20194510418 E20214:3 431 5 HAFS
(RFAETIIR)

Eighteen months Nine months
ended ended
31 March 30 September
Note 2021 2019
BE H=E
202138318 201999 530H
k3 L+ B A LIENEA
Cash flows from operating activities ﬁ“‘%éif]éiﬂ’ﬁﬁ 2
Surplus for the period BN A - 6,827,167
Adjustments for: HEER -
Depreciation and amortisation Yres N g 15,883,479 901,123
Interest income FLBMA (9,167,299) (1,959,414)
Interest on lease liability fﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ 2 2,780,517 167,458
Loss on disposal of property, BEYE  RER
plant and equipment M EE 12,575 -
9,509,272 5,936,334
Changes in working capital: LEEEH
Increase in deposits, receivables Re - BRI
and prepayments TR A I (623,035) (3,218,533)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FETBRER - FERTERA K
payable, accruals and other Hiv & &I CRd)
liabilities 3,057,894 (890,279)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred TN CRLD), /1N
income (108,007,390) 398,916,901
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KETHELENRS
operating activities T RAFE (96,063,259) 400,744,423
Cash flows from investing activities R&EH isiﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁumg
Payment for the purchase of property, ~ BEE )% - R LM A
plant and equipment (12,253,635) (2,125,183)
Payment for the purchase of intangible & B &, & EFKIA
asset (686,000) (294,000)
Interest received BUF B8 9,288,205 1,005,477
Decreasel/(increase) in time deposits REIBIRZR={EAK
with original maturities over three TERITFFOR ()
months 17,000,000 (292,000,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETHEENRS
investing activities FA GRE) =8 13,348,570 (293,413,706)
Cash flows from financing activities BEITHELNRESHE
Lease payments HERRK (11,957,568) (747,348)
Net cash outflow from financing MEETHELENE SR FE
activities (11,957,568) (747,348)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Iﬁ%&fﬁﬁ£1ﬁ%
cash equivalents W), EnEE (94,672,257) 106,583,369
Cash and cash equivalents at 7201910818, 201951818
1 October 2019/1 January 2019 HEESRESSEY 113,169,429 6,586,060
Cash and cash equivalents at 202138318, 201959H30H
31 March 2021/30 September 2019  E&RESZEY 20 18,497,172 113,169,429

The notes on pages 95 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BA TS ER AR MR
2019410 818 202143 31 A HARS
(RFEABTTIIR)

1.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong
Kong in 2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap.
588) (FRCO). Its office address is 24th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Legislative Council enacted the FRC (Amendment) Ordinance
2019 (the Amendment Ordinance) on 30 January 2019, which has
changed the role of the FRC with expanded functions effective from
1 October 2019 (the New Regime). As stipulated under the
Amendment Ordinance, the financial year end of the FRC has been
changed from 31 December to 31 March and the first financial year
under the Amendment Ordinance would be for the period from
1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021.

The current financial reporting period covers the 18 months from
1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021 and the comparative figures cover
9-month period from 1 January to 30 September 2019.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities by
auditors of entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into
non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed entities in
Hong Kong. Under the Amendment Ordinance, the FRC is a full-
fledged independent oversight body and is responsible for the
inspection, investigation and disciplinary functions with regard to public
interest entities (PIE) auditors, recognition of overseas auditors and
the oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of registration, setting of
standards on professional ethics, auditing and assurance, and setting
of continuing professional development requirements in relation to
PIE auditors. Its power to make enquiries into non-compliance with
accounting requirements by listed entities in Hong Kong continues.

—RER

1 5 /5514 2006 68 1R IR B T FE SR 4601
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B2 EAEER183HA T 02418 o

SRS H20194F 1 A 30 H iR iBC20195F 81 7%
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E o MSERENT R FEER12A318E
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BRI 5 42019410 A1 B 2202143 531
HERRE

BT B R 4 BAOR 22019410 A1 B &£2021
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20191 A1BE9A30H (-8 A AR -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #8353

Statement of Compliance and Basis of

Preparation of the Financial Statements
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in
the application of IFRSs by the FRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.
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BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

During the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 March 2021, the FRC did
not adopt any new or revised IFRSs.

The FRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant financial
impact on the FRC’s financial statements.

Annual Contribution

Before the commencement of the New Regime, the annual contribution
was the principal source of revenue, which is unconditional and non-
refundable. It was measured at the fair value of consideration received
or receivable and is recognised when it becomes receivable.

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEX) signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) regarding the funding arrangements of the FRC up to and
including the 2019 financial year. Each party agreed to contribute an
annual amount of $8.5 million to the FRC in 2019 for the recurring
expenditure. The MoU was terminated upon the commencement of the
New Regime of the FRC.

Under the New Regime, the FRC will be self-financing with funding
from levies payable by sellers and purchasers of securities, PIEs and
PIE auditors starting from 1 January 2022. A Government grant (note 5)
had been received to fund the operations of the FRC for the first 27
months (i.e. up to 31 December 2021) after the implementation of the
New Regime, during which the new levies were exempted.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #8353

Grant Income

In August 2019, the FRC received a grant of HK$400 million from the
Government to be utilised, during the period of migration to the New
Regime, to cushion the FRC against short-term fluctuations in the levy
income, to fund one-off capital and non-recurrent expenses, to allow
the FRC to gradually expand its manpower taking into account its
actual operational needs, and to provide a buffer for other exigencies
of circumstances. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to the grant.

The grant is recognised as deferred income in the statement of
financial position initially and is recognised as income on a systematic
basis in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods in
which the FRC recognises as expenses the related costs, including
depreciation on capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to
compensate.

BRI A

K201958A  WKERBNBEZMGIE
HARM B BUR B —E AT 8 B H4E L&) -
LA B ISR B ARG HDR E) -
MR EES RIS BT « B KER
REZREBEREERTERESEINAFR
ABHMZZBERREEE - ZFE W EMN
BARER G E MRS -

ZEE BN BRI R P R R IE TN
A R HEERBSAERAN (BREER
X E) RS H N R ARER A KA
RBEFELER BN - MZEEPEHE

EAREXH -

Deferred income IEFEYTA
Eighteen months Nine months
ended ended
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
BZ HE
2021%3H31H 201959 A30H
E+NEA IENEA
At 1 October 2019/1 January 2019 R2019410818
20191 A1H 398,916,901 -
Grant received from the Government of B &R BT BEVE B
the HKSAR - 400,000,000
Recognised as income in the period R AHRIA (108,007,390) (1,083,099)
At 31 March 2021/30 September 2019 MR202143H318
201949 530H 290,909,511 398,916,901
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised & : {AsHiSR—FR
as income within one year ERBBANSEE (77,993,000) (81,302,000)
Amount classified under non-current DEAIERDEESTE
liabilities 212,916,511 317,614,901
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Grant Income (continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

5. BEIWA W

31 March 30 September
2021 2019
202145 20194
3H31H 9H30H

Representing: Rk
Current Vink)| 77,993,000 81,302,000
Non-current FERE 212,916,511 317,614,901
290,909,511 398,916,901

Before the commencement of the New Regime on 1 October 2019,
part of the grant was utilised for the establishment of the new office
and the amount of the related cost incurred was recognised as income
in September 2019 to match the grant with the expenses incurred.

Application Fee Income and Recovery of
Costs of Investigations

Application fee income is recognised at a point in time on completion
of the application service upon which an auditor is registered or
recognised as a PIE auditor by the FRC.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the HKICPA'’s
disciplinary decision becomes finalised.

Interest Income

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

FEFHIERR2019F10 A1 B E AT - 20 E
BIEFRIERIIHTAE - MATELHMEREK
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #8353

8. Staff Costs

8. ETIMRA

Eighteen months Nine months

ended ended

31 March 30 September

2021 2019

Bz HE

2021%3H31H 20199 A30H

I+ NEA LENEA

Salaries, variable pay and bonuses TN - T ENB© R AEAL 76,342,787 23,383,882
MPF contributions EHIMEATES 3,524,519 1,073,693
Staff recruitment expenses HBEETIXH 2,656,809 547,463
Medical and life insurance BB N ASZRR 1,785,631 530,464
Staff training and development BT MR 278,173 16,314
Others Hh 309,302 177,991
84,897,221 25,729,807

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued
in the period in which the employees rendered the associated
services. Bonuses are recognised when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) in
Hong Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are
made based on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the FRC, in an
independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except for
the employer additional voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the FRC if an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully.

The above staff costs included the emoluments of the executive
directors and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) as stated in Note 9.
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9. Directors’ Emoluments

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

9. EEME

Eighteen months ended 31 March 2021

BZ2021F3A3ALTNEA
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay contributions Total
B
£k £ Fame AEEHF “E
Executive Directors HITES
Marek Grabowski, CEO 1 5h THEE - 1,939,350 - 96,968 2,036,318
Florence Wong ? TER - 3,587,258 160,745 187,400 3,935,403
- 5,526,608 160,745 284,368 5,971,721
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kelvin Wong, JP, Chairman A KFHLT ER 1,260,000 - - - 1,260,000
Roger Best, MH, JP Bhd o 2EHE  ATEL 360,000 - - - 360,000
Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP ¢ RFH - WEFEE - KAEHT 240,000 - - - 240,000
Eugene Fung, SC BERE . ERAER 360,000 = - = 360,000
Wilson Fung ® prgtes 240,000 = = = 240,000
Stephen Hung feiBfs 360,000 = = = 360,000
Miranda Kwok G 360,000 - - = 360,000
Rosita Lee = 360,000 - - - 360,000
Stephen Lee FHE 360,000 - - = 360,000
Lin Yong, JP Wi KT 360,000 - - - 360,000
Keith Lui* EEye 120,000 - - - 120,000
Francis Siu BiES 360,000 - - - 360,000
Peter Wan FHE 360,000 - - - 360,000
Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP BHR  REHEE  AT@t 360,000 - - - 360,000
Eirene Yeung ® Hgzs 240,000 - - = 240,000
5,700,000 - - - 5,700,000
Total directors’ emoluments BEZHE 5,700,000 5,526,608 160,745 284,368 11,671,721
1 Appointed with effect from 12 October 2020 1 7202010 A 12BEZE T
2 Appointed with effect from 6 December 2019 2 H20195F12 A6 BIEZR T
3 Term expired on 30 September 2020 3 EEI7 202049 A30H &
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2020 4 H2020F10 A1 HEZ (T

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R
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9. Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 9. EEME®)
In the nine months ended 30 September 2019, except for the CEO, HZE2019F9 A30H LE /L& B HAR + BRTTIER
Council members were not remunerated. The staff costs stated in BHEIN - MIEERBKE L EME o s
Note 8 for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 included the HIE R EL Z=2019F9 4308 1ENE A BEA
emoluments of the CEO as stated below: B ITAAE BIE Nl M TR E NS -
Nine months ended 30 September 2019
H 2201949308 (L@ A
Variable MPF
Salaries pay contributions Total
- a1
N e QRS HRK 4%
Paul F. Winkelmann' BIAE R 892,500 136,500 4,500 1,033,500
1 Retired on 31 March 2019 1 201953 A31 H EE
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10. Premises Expenses 10. IELZH
Eighteen months Nine months
ended ended
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
BZE BH=E
2021%3H31H 20199 A30H
I+ \BA LEAER
Rates, management fees and air- i EIRBREAE
conditioning charge 2,890,576 158,242
Others 1) 440,000 70,722
3,330,576 228,964
FRC entered into a lease agreement in July 2019 for its new office. HITEIE R BB E R A ER2019567 A5
The lease term is from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2023 with St - HEFR201949 A1 B #E 22023
an option to renew for a further term of two years and all the lease F8ANA  WARIEHEEMT - MATA
payments are fixed. HENFKEREEMNK
Prior to relocation in December 2019, the office premises of the FRC R2019F 12 BB A - MISIERBHPAE
were provided by the CRTF at a nominal rent of $1 per annum. All the HATHEMESEESRE 518K
related utility and sewage charges, outgoings, costs and expenses B—& - FTEMRERERTKER K
incurred in repairing, maintaining and managing the office premises sy - 1S  REREERRAZHRAK
were borne by the CRTF. SHEHAARFMEEEESAE -

MISER B « 2019-215F 3] FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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11. Corporate Communications Expenses 1. EEBERXH
Eighteen months Nine months
ended ended
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
8= #H=
202143 H31H 20199 A30H
I+ 1\{EB IENE A
Promotion and public education WERANEHE 204,989 92,228
Events EED 139,529 247,085
Publications HAR T 242,400 132,348
Others At 89,600 2,400
676,518 474,061

12. Project Expenses 12. HE X H

Project expenses represent the consultant fee for revamping the FRC'’s
training, appraisal and promotion policies (2019: conducting a study on
remuneration and benefits for the FRC).

1 04 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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13. Other Operating Expenses

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

13. Hh&E L H

Eighteen months Nine months

ended ended

31 March 30 September

2021 2019

BZ HE

2021F3H31H L 201999 A30H I+

+N\@EA FUE A

Conferences and duty visits FRELERER 184,910 271,476
Professional liability insurance BEEFARR 40,863 16,272
Office equipment and furniture expensed A ZE R LKA X 89,491 76,156
Relocation expenses WiBH> 54,702 -
Printing, stationery and office expenses ~ #TE] « XA M A =R 2,084,827 449,658
2,454,793 813,562

BB BERBIEDDE1916E - MIFERD
M BRRABFBZERARSRRZ  EPY
BEWEERRISER -

In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements of
the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this
service.

14. Taxation 14. B8
Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation RIEC T EIE R BIRBI)E 1615 - B ER D
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112). EEE M B ARIBCRE RGN (FE112F ) &4
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. Y5 - IR M

Office
furniture Other office Leasehold
and fixtures Computers equipment improvements Total
BAE Hity HE
RAREE BN WAERE MEEE ek
Cost HA
At 1 January 2019 7201951 A1H 600,374 1,349,566 163,831 - 2,113,771
Additions BA - - 255,319 1,869,864 2,125,183
At 30 September 2019 7201959 A30H 600,374 1,349,566 419,150 1,869,864 4,238,954
At 1 October 2019 722019F1031H 600,374 1,349,566 419,150 1,869,864 4,238,954
Additions BA 2,379,001 3,500,391 679,390 5,908,833 12,467,615
Disposal RE (585,974) (305,556) (38,069) - (929,599)
At 31 March 2021 #202163A31R 2,393,401 4,544,401 1,060,471 7,778,697 15,776,970
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE
At 1 January 2019 7201951718 (594,379) (776,913) (62,303) - (1,433,595)
Charge for the period BAE (1,740) (197,756) (15,285) - (214,781)
At 30 September 2019 7201959 A30H (596,119) (974,669) (77,588) - (1,648,376)
At 1 October 2019 722019F1031H (596,119) (974,669) (77,588) - (1,648,376)
Charge for the period BAE (316,918) (1,305,078) (172,986) (1,780,604) (3,575,586)
Written back on disposal RERED 582,106 305,556 29,362 - 917,024
At 31 March 2021 R202153A31R (330,931) (1,974,191) (221,212) (1,780,604) (4,306,938)
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2021 R2021%53A31H 2,062,470 2,570,210 839,259 5,998,093 11,470,032
At 30 September 2019 12201994 30H 4,255 374,897 341,562 1,869,864 2,590,578
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful
life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful
lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term
Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

Deprecation charge of property, plant and equipment in the statement
of comprehensive income for the period of $3,300,656 comprises the
depreciation charge of $3,575,586 from property, plant and equipment
as shown in the schedule on page 106 and reversal of depreciation
charge of $274,930 on leasehold improvements in relation to the old
office, which were fully depreciated and the provision of payables for
these leasehold improvements were reversed after confirmation with
the counterparty that the FRC is not required to pay them.

Other office equipment and leasehold improvements consist of
expenditure of capital projects in the amounts of $240,000 and
$1,869,864 respectively, which were not completed and hence were
not subject to depreciation as at 30 September 2019. Depreciation
of these assets commenced after the completion of the projects in
December 2019.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

15. M1 - REREBEM (E)

M - R REEMIRR AR REHTE KORE
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15.

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period
in which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the FRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2019: nil).

Lease

The lease for the new office (note 10) is recognised as a right-of-use
asset with a corresponding liability recognised at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the FRC.

The lease liability was measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the FRC’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 September 2019. The incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liability on 1 September 2019 was 4.625%. The lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the lease term (estimated at 6 years) on a straight-
line basis. The extension option (2 years extension) is included in the
lease term as it is reasonably certain that the lease will be extended.

1 08 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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16. Lease (continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

16. HE (4)

Buildings
Right-of-use asset FREEE BF
Cost R
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1 H1H -
Additions FEA 49,416,658
At 30 September 2019 720199 530H 49,416,658
At 1 October 2019 72019108318 49,416,658
Additions BA -
At 31 March 2021 7202153H31H 49,416,658
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 72019F1 518 -
Charge for the period HASE (686,342)
At 30 September 2019 720199 530H (686,342)
At 1 October 2019 1201910318 (686,342)

Charge for the period

At 31 March 2021

Net book value
At 31 March 2021

At 30 September 2019

FISERB + 2019-21F 3R

BRI

R20215F3H31H

AR FHE
R20215E3H831H

72019F9 H30H

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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16. Lease (continued) 16. HE (&)
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20215 20194
3A31H 9H30H
Lease liability HESE
Current E) 7,527,179 5,536,908
Non-current FEMRED 28,442,538 39,609,860
35,969,717 45,146,768
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20214 20194
3A31H 9H30H
Maturity profile of lease liability HEEB(ENNRBERERE)
(contractual undiscounted cash flows): I Z|HIARR
— Within 12 months -12(AR 8,968,176 7,473,480
— After 12 months but within 24 months — 1218 B 121818382418 A 8,968,176 8,968,176
— After 24 months but within 60 months — 241 A12 18 T8 E601E 5 21,673,092 26,904,528
— After 60 months - 60fE A% - 8,220,828
39,609,444 51,567,012
Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of REHE & ABEEBEOI MR -

the lease liability.

Eighteen months Nine months

ended ended

31 March 30 September

2021 2019

S BHE

2021F3H31H 201949 530H

LtE+N\EA LIEAEA
Interest on lease liability HEAEFE (2,780,517) (167,458)

Expense relating to leases of HEREESENEREEX

low-value assets (14,622) -

1 1 O FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21
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16. Lease (continued)
Changes in the lease liability and the reconciliation of the liability
arising from financing activities:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

16. HE (4)

HEEBEEHLEFEREGHNAEY
BE :

Lease liability

HEaRE
At 1 January 2019 720191818 -
Non-cash changes: R EE

Increase in lease liability relating to new lease EREFEENHESEEM 45,726,658

Interest on lease liability HEBENE 167,458
Financing cash flows: RMERERE -

Lease payments HERR (747,348)
As 30 September 2019 20199 A30H 45,146,768
At 1 October 2019 7201910711 45,146,768
Non-cash changes: R EE)

Interest on lease liability HEBRENE 2,780,517
Financing cash flows: BEHRBRE -

Lease payments HERR (11,957,568)
At 31 March 2021 7A2021%3H31H 35,969,717

On adoption of IFRS 16, a lease is recognised in the statement of
financial position as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease
liability recognised at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the FRC, except that payments associated with short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income over the
lease term.

REMBIRM RS LR F 16951 - HER
MBRAKRERREREEE - URNEE
BERIHMBERBER 2 B HERNEEHE
EafE RREHHENEEREEEES
BN SRR B AR ERER RS WA RS
BHERRAX -
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This represents the development cost of the case management
system, which was available for use and subject to amortisation from

February 2020.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of the case management system over its
estimated useful life of 5 years after considering its estimated residual
value. Amortisation commences when the case management system is

available for use.

1 1 2 FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21

17. Intangible Asset B EE
Computer
software
B E
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 7R2019F1 818 -
Additions BEA 882,000
At 30 September 2019 72019F9 530H 882,000
At 1 October 2019 72019F10A81H 882,000
Additions FEA 98,000
At 31 March 2021 72021E3H31H 980,000
Accumulated amortisation Eg: 5
At 1 January 2019, 30 September 2019 and 720191818 « 2019F9A30H &

1 October 2019 2019410 A1H -
Charge for the period HAE T (228,667)
At 31 March 2021 72021F3H31H (228,667)
Net book value BRE A
At 31 March 2021 72021F3H31H 751,333
At 30 September 2019 720199 530H 882,000

I ARGEERGNRBEKAE  ZERER
202052 A B A - WRHRHEEE -

BB ERRANE R 3 RO ER K (10
BIIIER - B TIRZE IR RS F M
ERSaILEEBEMGRER  NEREHS
HEKAHESE - BEARMEERGA
& PR HEET ©
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17.

18.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

Intangible Asset (continued)
Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

At the reporting date, the FRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of intangible asset may be impaired or a previously
recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased.
Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been recognised
(2019: nil).

Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

7. BEEE(®)

BE - AEASHRBHETEZEINERER
EETR - RIEHAEHE -

RiE R - MBERBFGEEE HRER
DR BB EERR LIRAE - SUBERE
ROBERIXEETNBHFEXEERD -
RAFEERNER  KEEIAETARMERSK
(2019%F : #&) o

18. BE - BURA KA KR

31 March 30 September

2021 2019

20214 20194

3A31H 9H30H

Deposits B 2,749,904 2,806,970

Accounts receivable FEURBR TR 90,102 41,360

Interest receivable FEUIFE 1,097,650 1,218,556
Prepayments SEANE /L

— Medical and life insurance — BERASRE 352,734 622,211

— Staff benefits — BTwEAF = 1,050

— Professional liability insurance — BEEETRRE 19,629 —

— Others — Hfty 1,197,700 315,443

5,507,719 5,005,590

The accounts receivable is due within 30 days. Due to the short-
term nature of the balance, the carrying amount is considered to be
the same as its fair value. We do not provide an ageing analysis of
accounts receivable as there was no material overdue balance as at
31 March 2021.

Deposits as at 31 March 2021 mainly represent refundable rental
deposit.

FEURBRFRA30 A A EIH - AR HIIEE B
R EERECEERAHREARBE—
B o A FE20214F3 A31 BiffEE Km A4k
B RPN AR L FE AR B A BR B AT o

R2021E3A3MAMZE T2 /A RMES
B o
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19. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over 19. REIAZSR=EANEHR=F

Three Months S
Time deposits with original maturities over three months carried fixed REBBZR =@ ANTEREFER  REE
interest rates ranging from 0.13% to 0.89% (2019: 2.11% to 2.23%) FHEHOIIEZ0.89F T E (20194 :
per annum. The balances outstanding at 31 March 2021 and 211EZE223[F) - R2021F3 8318 &
30 September 2019 had maturities less than 12 months from the 201999 H30 B M e Thd B B2 A N
reporting date. FIH o
20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 20. RERAESEEY
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20214 20194
3A31H 9H30H
Cash on hand FEAS 989 2,752
Current accounts X EEEIFR 540,529 305,792
Savings account HEFR 6,955,654 3,710,885
Time deposits with original maturities JREIEAR A= E A K E H
within three months F= 11,000,000 109,150,000
18,497,172 113,169,429
The effective interest rates on the bank balances and the short-term 202163 A31H8 - RITEBR R E AT T
time deposits at 31 March 2021 was 0.1% (2019: 1.8% to 2.19%) per T EBRFFEE0.1%(2019F : 1.8% %
annum. 2.19%) °
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21.

22.

23.

BSERD « 2019-21F 3R

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85

Accounts payable, accruals and other 21. BHERE - BErERAREME
liabilities &
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20214 20194
3H31H 9H30H
Accounts payable and accruals JERTBR R R FERT & F 6,219,492 3,810,018
Contract liabilities — receipts in advance &R & & —FEU KA 220 750
6,219,712 3,810,768
Receipts in advance represent the application fee income received TBRFIEIERNFHIE THRAIART = E S
in advance for the recognition of overseas auditors of PIE under the BOMZEETMIEW A EREBRAWA - B
New Regime. The balance will be recognised as revenue in the next BREERT — (B S BEER SR A - EHE
reporting period. Under the New Regime, the application fee income is ET - A3EAWARERBZRBERER
recognised as revenue when the application service is transferred. BUA
Provision for Reinstatement Cost 22. BRI RRRAERE
In accordance with the lease agreement, the FRC is required to restore REHRERE  VBERBDERHATERS
the office premises to the original condition at the end of the lease BRAEERZRANMKST - WERE GG
term. A provision has been recognised for the estimated expenditure. YTHELREE - BEKANCEATRESE
The cost has been capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset AR —2BoEEFTTER - WHNHEE ARG
which is depreciated over the lease term. £ o
Funds 23. 5%

General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent
funding.

Reserve fund represented the non-recurrent contributions received from
the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEX at the establishment
of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party contributed a lump-sum
amount of $5 million which is not refundable. The reserve fund was to
be deployed to meet any inadequacies of the recurrent funding and
other exigencies of circumstances. The reserve fund was transferred
to general fund immediately before the commencement of the New
Regime.

—RESNEVBERREELEE LS

AR o

RESEAREMEEEES  BEGH
NE  BEGNBIARBEFEBETENR
THBERBDEFTIRANEREELEER - &
HEERA-FEIAEHE - RHBS0ETHE
T RESTREELEESTREMNAEMES
BERATER - ZREFMHIEERR - FEC
wWEE—RED -
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24. Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

24. TRTH

EREMTANEESENOT

follows:
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20214 20194
3A31H 9H30H
Financial assets cRMEE
At amortised cost: L SHRCARIER
Deposits, accounts receivable and B - BRI B
interest receivable & 3,937,656 4,066,886
Time deposits with original maturities over R2|EIE ZHR=1{E A
three months FEHITE R 313,000,000 330,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEED 18,497,172 113,169,429
335,434,828 447,236,315
Financial liabilities A=K
At amortised cost: R SER AR IER ¢
Accounts payable and accruals NG ERTE A 6,219,492 3,810,018
Lease liability HEBRE
— Current — R 7,527,179 5,536,908
— Non-current — IERE 28,442,538 39,609,860
42,189,209 48,956,786
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2021 and
30 September 2019.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method except for lease liabilities as stated in note 16. No transaction
costs have been incurred.

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost
is based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-
going assessment of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. The FRC assesses whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date
with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. Each financial
asset is assessed on an individual basis and the FRC takes into
account both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. No impairment
loss has been recognised in 2021 (2019: nil).

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i85
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25. Financial Risks

(a)

Credit risk
The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable
and interest receivable, time deposits and other bank balances.

The recovery of the investigation costs is closely monitored by the
Board. Receivables from recovery of investigation costs are assessed
for recoverability on an individual basis based on the probability of
default upon initial recognition. On-going assessment is performed to
determine whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
The FRC does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The Board approved an investment policy which, subject to other limits,
only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong
Kong having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited
with banks that are rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. The policy
also limits the amount placed with each bank and the maximum
duration the deposit is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance
and Corporate Affairs Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Board.
As a result, the FRC is not exposed to significant credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of the financial assets as set out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
the FRC has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal
and considers that no loss allowance is required.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liability
were due to be repaid within three months (2019: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liability is disclosed
in note 16.
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(c)

26.
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Financial Risks (continued) 25. SRR B (&)
Market risk (c) MmiEEk
Currency risk BHmEE
The FRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong S ERPRESWARSZ B AEB T AT
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated BERBEENSRBEHUB T AR -
in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC is not exposed to any currency LB G PE 3R B A (AT S R -
risk.
Interest rate risk FIE 7
The FRC'’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in K ERPNEFEEETEAETEFERN
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The FRC is subject to interest FEHER - BB ERKE - BKERBS
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having HERMERR - WKERBEBHEESE TE
several short term deposits. The FRC’s exposure to interest rate risk HTF SR A B R E R o B TS IE B E R A A
is limited and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been RERER - F it W 5 1 5 8 b i 175Uk
prepared. [EDHT
Capital Commitments 26. EAREE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2021 not provided for in 20213 A318 - RAMBEMFTAIEL B
the financial statements were as follows: HHAREERRENAT
31 March 30 September
2021 2019
20214 20194F
3A31H 9H30H
Contracted for SIS 143,000 11,051,227
Authorised but not contracted for By IER Y 3,260,000 4,516,909
3,403,000 15,568,136
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Honorary Advisory Panel

HEEE

The function of the Honorary Advisers is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with respect to any matter referred
to the Honorary Advisers by the FRC. The panel comprises highly respected individuals with a wide spectrum of professional
expertise who provide their advice and contributions to the FRC at the committee level. By leveraging on their wealth of
experience, the FRC has been able to discharge our statutory duties as an effective independent auditor regulator of Hong Kong.

HEERAAREMNHYBERRENNER  RUBERR(EREZEEIET)RHAER - R EEAMEREARZEXNNNTEE
EEK - BEMMEENER - VBERBAIABREITRMEAT BN B R S E R B AT R -

From: 2019-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

AR - 2019-10-01
ERfE R - 2021-09-30

From 2015-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2015-12-11
A& - 2021-09-30

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER « 2019-10-01
A © 2021-09-30

Ms Melissa Brown

Ms Brown is a Partner at Daobridge Capital, a private investment advisory firm, where she focuses
on opportunities linked to sustainable investments in Asian markets. She also works as a specialist
consultant with the Institute for Energy Economics and Financial Analysis and the Asian Corporate
Governance Association. She is a member of the SFC Takeovers Panel and the HKEX Listing Review
Committee. She has previously served as a member of the HKEX Listing Committee, as a government-
appointed lay council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and on the
UN PRI Advisory Council.

Melissa BrownzZ &

Brown Z 2 —X AR E LA 7 Daobridge Capital AT A @ B R E N5 a3 E1%
HEANES - B ETEREERASMONAFTAFMEMNATE AR ST ERER - thEEE
WELREHEZESNEERGMEMBEZZEENE - B EATER I LTLZEENE -
BEHMATRNEGHESERINKEUARBEE PRIEHNZEENKE -

&

Mr Clement Chan, MH, JP

Mr Chan is the Managing Director — Assurance of BDO Limited and is a former president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has actively participated in standard-setting and
governance activities both in Hong Kong and at international level. Mr Chan is also a former Chair
of the Asian-Oceanian Standard Setters Group. Mr. Chan also holds a number of public positions
including a Non-executive Director of Securities and Futures Commission.

BREFERITE - REBE - AFHL
REERBRLERREIMEFAERARETBESLLE - A SMEESNASE
o WEHR2REE MEBR TN GIEERREREE o b BIREEMRAFMNER G E#ER
I - REETREEZELKRE  SREFAAEEHFERZEQNIFNTES -

Dr Eva Chan

Dr Chan is the Head of Investor Relations of C C Land Holdings Limited. She is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Capital Environment Holdings Limited and an Adjunct Professor in the School of
Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is the Founding Chairman of Hong
Kong Investor Relations Association, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(HKICS) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
RAaEE LT

REL/PABEMIERARARREERELE - R EMRFERARQFNBLIFNTES -
DREBRIXNEZGT NERMBLARBEE - WRFERELEHEREBEWNAIGLTE - TR
MERE (HKICS) MFHAWERITRABSZENEREE - RBH B ASMFFARES
MAEHEREE -
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Mr Andrew Chen

Mr Chen is the Executive Partner of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Ltd and is the former President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in 2018 and continues to be the council member of the
Society.

PRI 4
RAEERTELESHMEBAARDFMITARA - 0 2018 FHEBFEAGHAASE
& RETZEEE -

From 2019-04-01

Current appointment expires
on 2023-03-31

FRIIER  2019-04-01
(FHRfE R - 2023-03-31

Mr Michael Cheng

Mr Cheng is the former Head of Government Affairs & Public Relations, APAC of Invesco Hong
Kong Limited. He was previously MSCI| Hong Kong Limited’s Executive Director of ESG Research
and led their APAC corporate governance research. He has also held senior positions at Hong Kong
Exchanges & Clearing Limited, Securities and Futures Commission, China International Capital
Corporation and the Asian Corporate Governance Association. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

£ -
From 20191001 BAEEBISIBIEETEERARDARBFES R AEBEEE - MSCIESG AR TES -
urrent a, ointment expires N . . A = NyAS = SHE Ak M JL > e P SIRTnA. = =
on 2021-06.30 P BB HEE - AL AT ACCA NEEMM - 2 EEBERREEENEEEE  thE
EAIAER - 2019-10-01 EE e R o

EAEw - 2021-09-30

Mr Chew Fook Aun

Mr Chew has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance in the United Kingdom
and Hong Kong. He is currently the Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the Executive Director of eSun
Holdings Limited, and the Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited.

BREZEE
FSRERERBEMEERFE 30 FOHSET - Bt LR  RABNHEKERER AT MEH#E
: BRERAFRNEIEFERITES  CEBERERAFNATESTLBEERARA AN EFER
From 2015-12-11 HITES o

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2015-12-11
EA ) - 2021-09-30
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Dr Christine Chow

Dr Chow is an Executive Director and Global Head of Strategic Governance Advisory and ESG
Integration for IHS Markit. Prior to this, she was a Director at Federated Hermes as the Global Lead of
Technology and Head of Asia and Global Emerging Markets Stewardship, and Chair of the SDG Fixed
Income Committee. She is a Member of Court of Governors and Investment Committee of the London
School of Economics and a Board Member of the International Corporate Governance Network (ICGN),
and investor-led organisation with US$53 trillion assets under management. She was a member of the
UK All Party Parliamentary Group on Atrtificial Intelligence and Data Governance (2018-2021), Adjunct

Erom 2021-04-15 Associate Professor at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (HKUST) and Member of
gr‘]”z’g’z’gagf‘;’gt’"e”‘ Expires the Greater China Committee of the Hong Kong Retirement Funds Association (2014—2016).
FEHIER © 2021-04-15 B EE

AR - 2025.04-14 BB IAT IHS Markit 89350178 EHBAE 0 25748 ESG B A HARBAIBIRES - 71t

2R e Federated Hermes MESE @ IEEE2HEHEEE - MM EMZEEEE
J«/USi SDG EEWREZEEGERF - MERIUSESREREGMEEZEGNE - TEEBARER

f4 (ICGN) E’]i%“%ﬁké\ (ICGN 2— AR EETEREIR 53 BEXTEEMMAL) - 2
9&.%%)\1 SRE SR RIEE S/ MARK B (2018-2021) « BERHEABRBEIZE - URBEHR
ReHpgRFPERZEENKE (2014-2016) °

Mr Fox Chu

Mr Chu is a Partner in McKinsey & Company in Hong Kong, co-leading Travel, Logistics and
Infrastructure practice. Mr Chu has advised clients from the public sectors, private companies and
investment institutions on topics across policy reform, growth strategy, M&A, operations turnaround
and digital corporate venture in Greater China, ASEAN, Sub-continents, GCC and Europe.

?\iflﬁi%%?%:f% AIZAERABHESE  KFEEERHEDMNRME - YR EERRE
RRERS o REEHESR 20 yﬁﬁ'}ﬁélﬂ s i&?@muﬁ%%&%ﬁ BN TEBERE - THiFRMEE -
From 2021-02-10 &T%&ﬁ%ﬁ%(%{bﬁ%aimi MBBRTGHE « EIER - BITEBRMBEFER - £EE

Curront appoiniment expires gy gL 8RR RISHES IR %EPIE R EARE - B - ISR R -

EAIER - 2021-02-10
EA )z - 2023-02-09
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Mr Addison Everett

Mr Addison has over 30 years of professional experience with PwC in China — Beijing and Hong Kong
SAR — and other countries/regions. He is currently PwC Chief Risk Officer and also serves as the
Senior Partner for a large PwC audit client in the financial services sector. Previously, he provided a
range of auditing, advisory and capital markets services to a number of PwC’s largest clients. He also
has experience leading business and functional units within PwC.

ZMASTE

A AT R GEP BEIE BB 30 FRHEERBAR - TIENMEBFEIL R MEBERT
Eﬁ%ﬁ?;,?;}g?ﬂentexp;res WE - AREMERSME - B ﬁﬁ; EE R EERRERKENRR  BEEBREHEHFE
on 2023-03-31 EABAN TRARKET—RAECHBRETESTRFNERABA THETECLBELRN
LRI < 2019-04-01 KEZRAMNEFPRMUSEBHR  BANEATISERYE - WHEEL=E/E LFKENBEBN

P % ¢ 2023-03-31 o= =
L EBPIm R B AR -

Ms Grace Hui
Ms Hui is the Head of Green and Sustainable Finance at Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEX) with responsibility for the development of HKEX's green and sustainable finance programme
including exploring the creation of commercial propositions to facilitate sustainable financing for
environmentally-aligned companies. Ms Hui is a member of both the Regulatory Oversight Board
and the Sustainability Committee of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She co-
chairs the Market Development Work Stream and the Carbon Market Working Group of the Green
and Sustainable Finance Cross-Agencies Steering Group established by the Hong Kong Monetary
From 2020-10-06 Authority and Securities and Futures Commission. She is a qualified lawyer in Hong Kong and in
g;}’ggggf’fg‘ggtmem expires England and Wales.
R © 2020-10-06 =R 22
L@ - 2022-10-05 N e . — e - e N
MRTEBERGREEMBRAR (BERXSM) GERAHERRERMTE  AEHWEES
RGN ENAHEERMETE  RRAZGZEERMTE  XFHHARRAMNARETA
SEERME TR IREESHASEXLELEZESENANERREZEGNKE < 0N
EEACREERNBELFA M REEFHBEREZEGHAKUNZENAFECREREE S/ MEE
T M S E R T NMARFRT IS TR NMEBETE - thETBIA NSRRI BT R A 2 E
18 o
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From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2019-10-01
EA ) - 2021-09-30

From 2018-03-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

R - 2018-03-01
(EEfE - 2021-09-30

From 2015-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2015-12-11
EA ) - 2021-09-30

Ms Ashley Khoo

Ms Khoo, CFA, CPA, is an asset management and investment banking professional with
comprehensive buy-side and sell-side experience, inclusive of portfolio management, fundamental/
quantitative/pre-deal research covering Asian and China markets, multi-asset class investment, and
Big 4 financial advisory with financial institutions in Hong Kong and New York. She is a Board Member
of The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and CFA Institute’s Presidents Council Governance
Committee Member. Ms Khoo served as the President of The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts
from 2016 to 2018.

miggi+

EXTREEEEIRERITEEAL  BEZENEALEF LR  REREESERE - =M
RABTISHER - 86 - ERARBIRFIAR - ZLEERFIRE REKHRA - RATBMK
DITENE S E =B E K CFA &2k Presidents Council BV AZE €% 8 - 1 2016 % 2018
FHRLEEEMEOTESER -

Mr Anthony Leung

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of Ernst & Young member firms for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a

former member of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2009 and

completed the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served on the Professional Conduct Committee

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a member of both the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

RNRFAE

RELRELKEBIRFIBARBEESCRA  GEBBHMARIMBERAR LTEEGEE
(£ 2009 = 2015 FEFTHNFEH) - MR EEBESHMAGERTREEEGEE - 4

EEEEMASEE MEMNGEIMAEEE -

Mr Stephen Mercer
Mr Mercer is a partner with KPMG in Hong Kong and currently Deputy Head of Audit for KPMG China.
BRBREERERHABARA  BAIREEEFETEEARBEIZEARA -
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Mr Francis Mok

Mr Mok is currently the Principal Consultant of Francis Mok Consulting, helping clients to establish
the best human capital practices. He worked with a wide range of corporations and companies,
transforming HR practices and building leadership pipelines for business sustainability. He is a Past
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources Management (HKIHRM), and a Past
President of the Asia Pacific Federation of Human Resource Management (APFHRM).

BB
% BRABRIRBERAEEERER  EERPEYREANEARAETE - 2 ARSI KA E
Qw?mmf, , BNHHERANEREEER - 2B BANEREEEZEE (HKIHRM) i€ R M AANER
on 20210030 P mmm A S (APFHRM) AR & ©

EAER - 2019-10-01
EA ) - 2021-09-30

Mr. Keith Pogson

Mr Pogson is the Global Assurance Leader for Banking & Capital Markets at Ernst & Young (EY), and
the Founder and former Regional Managing Partner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Practice of
EY. He is the EY representative on the Bank Working Group of the Global Public Policy Committee of
the Big 4 + 2 firms. He is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), and continues to be the Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the Regulatory
Oversight Board and the Disciplinary Panel of the HKICPA, and was previously the Chair of the Ethical
Standard Setting Committee and the Assurance Standards Setting Committees of the HKICPA. He is
a Deputy Chairman since 2020 of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Erom 2018-03-01 and a member since 2016. He is a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform of

Current appointment expires the HKSAR Government from 2015 to 2021.
on 2021-09-30

FHIZER © 2018-03-01 Mr Pogson is a Fellow and Practicing Member of the HKICPA, a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
ERE R < 2021-09-30 Accountants in England & Wales, a Member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute as
well as Member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.
(2Fines

BYERT NBED KD ARESMRISES  REZITORITREATISRIKETEREE -
AN KETMSEBATAR 2 ARBERE B IRIT TR AL KRR o b 2012 FEETE
BertiAgteRk REESXETEERLZE S  ERZESRLENMNKE  TRIETZS
HERTEAFFTZESMNEZEIHFTZESMER - bR 2016 FX AT BB LTEES
IR E - A 2020 FHEEEIEFEES X 2015 & 2021 EREEEFBERITHE BT A GLENRE
BIEEESHKE -
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Prof Zabihollah Razaee

Prof Rezaee is the Thompson-Hill Chair of Excellence and Professor of Accountancy at the
University of Memphis and has served a two-year term on the Standing Advisory Group of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). He holds ten certifications including Certified Public
Accountant (CPA). He is currently the editor of the Journal of Forensic Accounting Research (JFAR).
Professor Rezaee has published over 225 articles and made more than 250 presentations, written 14
books and served as expert witness. Prof Rezaee’s teaching, research and service interests are in
financial reporting, auditing, corporate governance, business sustainability, forensic accounting and
organizational ethics.

From 2019-12-11 . Zabihollah Rezaee##%

Current appointment expires  Rezaee #({% 2 2 IEATAZ Thompson-Hill £ 38 BEHUE R & 5T RHE - B EXE EH AR &
(EHIRES © 2019-12-11 EERZ BE (PCAOB) MERAH/ NMARBSME - iR TIEREFER  BIEZIMSEEER -
FERAEA < 2021-09-50 BE CEBERTRAEE) (Journal of Forensic Accounting Research) #)47 %8 © Rezaee 215 %

KT 22B5RENEBERT 250 L EHB MRS T 14 KE - WEETEXRFA ° Rezaee %&&E’ﬁﬁl
2 RMRSEBRIETFES T/t - EER  EBEBEN RSO AAEE -

Mr Paul Smith

Mr Smith is an independent corporate director. He served as President and CEO of CFA Institute from
January 2015 to September 2019. Previously he owned and ran Asia Alternative Asset Partners, a Hong
Kong Hedge Fund Group. He first came to Hong Kong in 1996 to run the Bank of Bermuda'’s securities
servicing business and on sale to HSBC acted as Global Head of HSBC'’s alternative funds servicing
business. From 1984 to 1995 he worked for Ermitage International as a European fund manager
spending the last seven years as CEO. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Accountants of England and
Wales, a Chartered Financial Analyst and holds a Master of Arts degree from Oxford University.

Paul Smith%c 4%
From 2020-02-05 Smith SEAERB I AREE © b0 2015 F 1 AE 2019 F 9 ARERF RO TS S T EHRTT
Current appointment expires 483, © LLAT - 1@%%&%%%%}%%# E &% E Asia Alternative Asset Partners ° ﬁﬁEA 1996 F
(FHBHAR © 2020-02-05 BARBES  KEARERTVESRGEES - WHE TELZRT  BREFELRITSERE
AR < 2022-02-04 TIRBEBHZIKBEA « # 1984¢ 11995 4 - {b7F Ermitage International Tf”EEA’”JHﬁC%éiE

E&ZH 7 FPETEFRITE - R R BRI SA R ERKE - BFAS RO -
WA FRAB PRI B

Mr David Stannard

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was Executive Director in charge of the
Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (1999-2001), a member of the
Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (2003-2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform
(2003-2010).

> HERESTE
i | STERERE AT HBEBNAREL © 1 1999 FE 2001 FHEEHFMMEFTHERZB X
e orean0r B TR S - 2003 5 2008 FABEBBA X AR AR ERMAILR LTSS RRE

Current appointment expires 2003 4F = 2010 F AR AIENE EHEEGMKE -
on 2021-09-30

ERIHER © 2018-12-11
A - 2021-09-30
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Mr Eric Tong

Mr Tong is an Audit & Assurance Partner of Deloitte China's Financial Services Industry Group. He
brings with him 35 years of experience in auditing and advising international and local banks and
securities companies. He is the Chairman for Deloitte INED Club and was the leader for Financial
Services Industry for Southern China. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He
was the HKICPA President in 2018 and was the Chair for Audit and Assurance Standards Committee,
Securities Regulatory Advisory Panel and Branding and Communication Advisory Panel. He also led a
digitalisation project for the HKICPA. Mr Tong received the HKSAR Chief Executive's Commendation

From 2020-02-05 ) . ) ) .
Current appointment expires for Community Service in July 2018 and is currently an independent member of Task Force for Review

on 2022-02-04 on Enhancement of Lump Sum Grant Subvention System, Labour and Welfare. He was a member of
FEHIRR © 2020-02-05

(EEE % © 2022-02-04 Policy Research Committee of Financial Services Development Council between 2017 and 2019.
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I8 B RGHERERER AN RBIIER - FEER 2018 £ 7 AEBTREEHERE
AR - £ 2017 £ 2019 FHERE IR B RBERBEERMET/ NEKE - BATRS TRRENBHE
EBERFORHIE RN EREBIKE -

Mr Richard Tsang

Mr Tsang is the founder and Chairman of Strategic Public Relations Group. He is also a member of the
Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene; member of the Hong Kong Council on Smoking
and Health; Member of the Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee, Office of
the Communications Authority; Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and Council
Member of Hong Kong Q Mark Council.
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From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2019-10-01
EA ) - 2021-09-30

From 2021-04-15
Current appointment Expires
on 2023-04-14

EABER - 2021-04-15
EA W - 2023-04-14

From 2019-04-01

Current appointment expires
on 2023-03-31

ERIER - 2019-04-01
FRIfE R - 2023-03-31

Ms Nancy Sau Ling Tse, JP
Ms Tse is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of Wharf (Holdings) Limited (WHL); Link
Asset Management Limited (Manager of the Link Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)), DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited as well as HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited (HPFT). She is
also the Chairman of the Board of HPFT. She is the former Chief Financial Officer and Director (Finance
and Information Technology Services) of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority. She is a member of the
Board of Governors of the Prince Philip Dental Hospital and is an Adjunct Professor of the Jockey
Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She has been
active in Corporate Governance projects and is a member of the Professional Accountants in Business
Advisory Group of the International Federation of Accountants. She is also a Fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
HHERLZE  KFEMHTL
HALLTHENEREBERAR  BREHEREERES (HR [ERFHEREETESR]
WEEA) RERRT (B8) ARATNEIFNTES WIS ELREEXFEA (FH)
BRARRE IEBITESE - WHET HSBC Provident Fund Trustee ( Hong Kong Limited) EE &
TE - WARLERLECBREERNMBAE AR (MBLEMBKRE) - thEIEET RS
GOERRKE  WEREBRIXARBEFTEAHFELEERRERNTEHK - 12 S ({
CEERER  TMERERSMBMASEHHEANMNEXSHNE - REBERESNER
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Mr Stephen Weatherseed

Mr Weatherseed is Practising Director of Mazars and was the Managing Partner from 2012 to 2020.
He is a Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an Independent Board Member of
the English Schools Foundation. He was previously the Deputy Chairman of the Professional Conduct
Committee and a member of the Examinations Board and of the Continuing Professional Education
Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

BERERE

BRREERE Mazars HIETFEE - 10 2012 F £ 2020 FEENTERA - W2 BEEEFEE
BENRESERBENBYES - W EREFESHMASEXRTZEGATE  ZHTES
RENRSEEEREZEGNE -

Mr. Andy Wong

Mr Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association

of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 28 years of professional experience in assurance

and business advisory services. Currently, he is the IPO leader of ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited and

a member partner of the firm’s Risk Management Committee and PRC-HK Business Coordination

Partner

EREEE
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Mr. Huen Wong, BBS, JP

Mr Wong is the Principal of Fried Frank, Hong Kong and Shanghai offices. He is the former Chairman
of the Communications Authority. He is also the former President of the Inter-Pacific Bar Association
and the Law Society of Hong Kong.

FHEEAE  ASHES  ATHT

ETREREARBMTEER DENTTERA - B ERAEKRERRERFE » TRAERATF
RMgeRLBEAMEER

From 2015-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

FRIER - 2015-12-11
&R - 2021-09-30

Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
RSM Hong Kong in 1988 and was made partner in 1991. He is currently the Managing Partner
and Head of Audit and Assurance Services of RSM Hong Kong. Mr Wong is also a member of the
Transnational Audit Services Executive Committee of RSM Global which oversees the audit quality of
all RSM member firms over the world.

FRENEE
TRAETHBERGRTAN - 1988 FIMABRRXGFTMEHF - RAZMETESKARENBEE
From 2019-10-01 BRA-MRERX [ERFAHEEERZEE] KB EEFRLERERNEMEEE -

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

AR 2019-10-01
ERfE R - 2021-09-30

Mr Jackson Woo

Mr Woo is the CEO of Challenge Capital Management Limited, a consultant of Guantao & Chow
Solicitors and Notaries and a director of Kailey and Fong Fun Group of Companies. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Henderson Land Development Co. Ltd. He is a member
of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing Review
Committees of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is a Qualified Solicitor in Australia,
WY Hong Kong and England and Wales and is a Practising Solicitor Member of the Solicitors' Disciplinary
From 2019-10-01 Tribunal Panel in Hong Kong.

Current appointment expires .
on 2021-09-30 BARER S
AT < 2019-10-01 HAEERERREREBRARINITRAER - BEEAMEHEMOER N PERF ZEENE

EA )z - 2021-09-30
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Mr Elton Yeung

Mr Yeung is the Vice Chairman of PricewaterhouseCoopers China. He has extensive audit and
business advisory experiences, and has led numerous complex restructuring and listing engagements,
including initial public offerings of PRC state-owned and private-owned enterprises seeking listing
in the US, HK and Mainland China markets. He has in-depth understanding of relevant regulatory
environment and financial reporting requirements for listed companies.

BESEE

BRERERRBUKEETEEHMBIER  ZFER BT EINEINEEARNTANEETIE
From 2018-03-01 , REBSESTPBRABHLMEE B RNORG HIBGER FTEEE - BEE - FEUARPE
Current appointment expires S S Sy 8wl et gER e o ERATES B A E 7
on 2022-02-28 MBS TS EERFENPBEREZLEFRAK T -

EAER - 2018-03-01
EAEw - 2022-02-28

Prof Wayne Yu

Prof Yu is a professor at the City University of Hong Kong. His teaching and research areas include
corporate governance, corporate finance, and capital markets. In addition, he has been serving as a
non-executive, independent director for a number of listed companies. He is also a Chartered Financial
Analyst.

BIRIEHIR

BHEREBWTAZHEE « M ENHAREHBIERADEIR - RAIMBMERTS o LI -
HMEEEZR EMAFIRERITELES - LB EIFTTEm TR

From 2019-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

R - 2019-12-11
FAE ) - 2021-09-30

Retired Honorary Advisers HE BB

Mr Nicholas Debnam Nicholas Debnamst 4

Mr Clement Kwok PRI E

Mr Keith Lui BHENESE

Ms Teresa Ma BRHALt

Mr Sin Chung-kai, SBS, JP BpEEE  REFIEE - KP4t
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Financial Reporting Review Panel R ERMNEER
Panel Conveners ZEEE&A

Mr lan Farrar FRERE

Mr Mark Johnson HEFRE

Dr PM Kam, BBS HigEL - EHFEE
Mr Carmelo Lee, JP FrtkE KFaT
Mr Paul Shieh, SC ARG E - AIRAER
Mr Tang Kwai Chang HEZEE

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP TR WEAEE - APt
Mr Wong Kim Man RIS e E

Mrs Betty Yuen, JP Frés b B&+ - KFEM+
Members RE

Mr Abraham Chan, SC PRELZ S - ERKNERD
Mr Edmund Chan BRIEX ke

Prof Cheng Cheng Shing BPHR I

Mr Hamilton Cheng BPIRER S

Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC HEOLZT - BFEAEE
Mr Jeckle Chiu B REE

Mr Louis Chow Akt

Ms Candy Fong ERkZt

Mr Tommy Fung HENFE

Prof Gu Zhaoyang' BEFARG IR

Ms Joan Ho MEEL+

Prof Hung Ming Yit AR

Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans RehHhfE

Mr Byron Khoo keSS e

Ms Kelly Kong B ta 2+

Mr Kenneth Lau 2R

Mr Leo Lee FERLE

Mr Ernest Lee FEsHE

Mr Lee Yin-toa FE#EEE

Mr William Lo EERESEE

Ms Fanny Lung BEEELL

Mr Bernard Mak BIRFE Sk

Prof Mo Lai Lan R

Mr Christopher Morley BYERAE

Mr Kenneth Morrison MIBERE

Ms Agnes Nardi FRELL

Prof. James Arvid Ohlson’ James Arvid Ohlson#(#%
Mr Simon John Riley Pt e

Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario BiELE

Ms Shelley So BRAT At

Mr Gary Stevenson Gary Stevensonst 4

Mr Eric Tang skt

Mr Hamilton Tang RHEEST A
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Mr Jim Tang

Mr Tsui Hon Man
Prof. Wang Xin'

Ms Wendy Yuen

Prof Zhang Guochang

1 Appointed with effect from 16 July 2020

Process Review Panel

Chairperson

Ms Edith Shih' (from 1 January 2021)

Dr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP2 (from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020)

Members

Ms Florence Chan?

Mr Patrick Law Fu-yuen'’

Prof Low Chee Keong?

Dr Lo Huoy Cheng, Stefan (representative of the Secretary for Justice) (ex-officio)
Mr Andrew Mak Yip-shing'

Mr Frederick Tsang Sui-cheong’
Mr Tse Kam Keung

Professor Anna Wong Wai-kwan'
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (ex-officio)
Mr Yu Chung-leung®

1 Appointed with effect from 1 January 2021
2 Term expired on 31 December 2020

Audit Investigation Board

Chairman

Mr Marek Grabowski (ex-officio) (from 12 October 2020)

Ms Florence Wong (ex-officio) (from 6 December 2019 to 11 October 2020)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Mr Andes Kwok
Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Anna Lau
Ms Joyce Woo
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